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CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

March 31, 2013

December 31, 201

(Unaudited) (1)
Assets:
Cash and cash equivale $ 649,52¢ $ 621,15!
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior 69 88
Senior intere-only 120,05: 122,86¢
Subordinatel 585,34( 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only 14,53« 16,25:
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,632,64. 1,806,69
Accrued interest receivab 14,19t 15,24¢
Other asset 11,75: 13,97(
Subtotal 3,028,11. 3,144,07.
Assets of Consolidated VIEs
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated variabtergst entities ("VIEs"), at fair val 3,299,35! 3,274,20:
Securitized loans held for investment, net of alaee for loan losses of $12.0 million and
$11.6 million, respectivel 1,082,31i 1,300,13.
Accrued interest receivab 22,27¢ 24,08
Subtotal 4,403,94. 4,598,41
Total asset $ 7,432,05! $ 7,742,48!
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RMBS ($1.5 billi@h$dn6 billion pledged as collateral,
respectively’ $ 1,420,370 $ 1,528,02!
Accrued interest payab 2,93¢ 2,441
Dividends payabl 92,43: 92,43:
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 2,36¢ 1,17¢
Investment management fees and expenses payadifditde 3,44 7,67¢
Interest rate swaps, at fair val 48,53: 53,93¢
Subtotal 1,570,09! 1,685,68.
Non-Recourse Liabilities of Consolidated VIEs
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RMBE3.3 billion and $3.3 billion pledge
as collateral, respectivel 1,241,29 1,336,26.
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans heldifieestment ($1.1 billion and $1.3 billion
pledged as collateral, respective 959,60: 1,169,71
Accrued interest payab 7,38¢ 8,35¢
Subtotal 2,208,28: 2,514,32!
Total liabilities $ 3,778,38. $ 4,200,01!
Commitments and Contingencies (See Note
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred Stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1000000shares authorized, O shares issued a
outstanding, respective $ - $ =
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share; 1,500000G6hares authorized, 1,027,595,493 a
1,027,597,458 shares issued and outstanding, tesge: 10,27( 10,26¢
Additional paic-in-capital 3,604,62 3,604,55:
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li 1,113,68 989,93t
Retained earnings (accumulated defi (1,074,91) (1,062,279
Total stockholders' equit $ 3,653,67° $ 3,542,47!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,432,050 $ 7,742,48!

(1) Derived from the audited consolidated finanstatements
See accompanying notes to consolidated financissients




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(dollars in thousands, except share and per slzag

(unaudited’
For the Quarter Ende

March 31, 201  March 31, 201:
Net Interest Income:
Interest incomt $ 29,067 $ 51,31¢
Interest expens (1,839 (2,326
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 96,72¢ 98,34¢
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of consolidated VI (26,996 (34,049
Net interest income (expens 96,96¢ 113,29:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss - (32,077
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (6,169 (16,287
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (6,169 (48,364)
Other gains (losses)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s 5,40z 81z
Net realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (5,530 (4,399
Net gains (losses) on interest rate swaps (128 (3,586
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (1,019 17,947
Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn 6 16,01(
Total other gains (losse (1,139 30,37
Net investment income (los 89,66¢ 95,30(
Other expenses
Management fee 6,44¢ 12,90¢
Expense recoveries from Manay (1,855 -
Net management fes 4,59/ 12,90¢
Provision for loan losses, n 424 167
General and administrative expen 4,84 1,98¢
Total other expense 9,86¢ 15,06¢
Income (loss) before income taxe 79,80z 80,23t
Income taxe: 2 2
Net income (loss $ 79,80. $ 80,23
Net income (loss) per share available to common stedolders:
Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Weighted average number of common shares outstandin
Basic 1,027,009,51 1,026,762,09
Diluted 1,027,595,51 1,027,489,58
Dividends declared per share of common stock $ 0.0¢ $ 0.11
Comprehensive income (loss
Net income (loss $ 79,80. $ 80,23
Other comprehensive income (los
Unrealized gains (losses) on avail-for-sale securities, n 117,59 123,13
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includatket income (loss) for other-thaiemporary cred
impairment losse 6,16: 48,36¢
Reclassification adjustment for net realized loggams) included in net income (lo¢ (6) (16,010
Other comprehensive income (lo 123,75: 155,48t
Comprehensive income (los $ 203,65 $ 235,72:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financdstents






CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
(dollars in thousands, except per share ¢

(unaudited’
Accumulated Retained
Common Additional Other Earnings
Stock Paid-in Comprehensive  (Accumulated
Par Value Capital Income (Loss Deficit) Total

Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26 $ 3,603,73' $ 433,45 $ (999,84() $3,047,61!
Net income - - - 80,23: 80,23:
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale
securities, ne - - 123,13: - 123,13:
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includel

net

income (loss) for other-than-temporary credit

impairmentlosses - - 48,36¢ - 48,36¢
Reclassification adjustment for net realized losses

(gains)

included in net income (los - - (16,010 - (16,010
Proceeds from direct purchase and dividend
reinvestmen 1 11€ - - 117
Proceeds from restricted stock gra - 81 - - 81
Common dividends declared, $0.11 per sl - - - (112,946 (112,946
Balance, March 31, 201 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,603,931 $ 588,94. $ (1,032,55) $3,170,59.
Balance, December 31, 20 $ 10,26¢ $ 3,604,55 $ 989,93t $ (1,062,27) $3,542,47!
Net income (loss - - - 79,80 79,80:
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale
securities, ne - - 117,59 - 117,59
Reclassification adjustment for net losses includel

net income

(loss) for other-than- temporary credit impairme

losses - - 6,16 - 6,16
Reclassification adjustment for net realized losses
(gains) included in net income (los - - (6) - (6)
Proceeds from restricted stock gra 2 73 - - 75
Common dividends declared, $0.09 per sl - - - (92,439 (92,437)
Balance, March 31, 201 $ 10,27C $ 3,604,62 $ 1,113,68 $ (1,074,91) $3,653,67.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financdstents




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(dollars in thousand:

(unaudited
For the Quarter Ende
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss $ 79,80. $ 80,23:
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea by (used in) operating activitie
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountsfpiums, ne (19,057 (10,35%)
Amortization of deferred financing cos 2,11« 3,221
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disetmipremiums, ne 1,81: 8,10¢
Net unrealized losses (gains) on interest rate s (5,4072) (812)
Net unrealized losses (gains) on inte-only RMBS 1,01z (17,94°)
Net realized losses (gains) on sales of investn (6) (16,010
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss 6,16: 48,36¢
Provision for loan losses, n 424 167
Equity-based compensation expe! 75 81
Changes in operating asse

Decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivaét 2,851 (1,28¢)

Decrease (increase) in other as 10¢ 2
Changes in operating liabilitie

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and adbdities 1,19¢ (115

Increase (decrease) in investment management fidesx@enses payable to affilic (4,229 5

Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payahl (477) 89¢
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi $ 66,40: $ 94,54’
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
RMBS portfolio:

Purchase $ (7,429 $ (91,429

Sales 182 79,05¢

Principal payment 159,18 183,61:
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated VI

Principal payment 105,55( 132,63(
Securitized loans held for investme

Purchase - (753,69)

Principal payment 211,43¢ 21,06
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi $ 468,93t $ (428,759
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds from repurchase agreem $ 1,686,49 $ 2,034,83

Payments on repurchase agreem (1,794,14) (2,204,95)

Payment of deferred financing co - (4,369

Proceeds from securitized, collateralized by Idaeld for investmer - 696,11.

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaiz¥dlby loans held for investme (209,431) (29,730

Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collaizzdlby Nol-Agency RMBS (97,459 (129,88

Net proceeds from direct purchase and dividendsesimen - 117

Common dividends pai (92,437) (112,93)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi $ (506,96 $ 259,18
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis $ 28,371 $ (75,026
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 621,15: 206,29!
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 649,52¢ $ 131,27:
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Interest receive $ 109,60 $ 138,90!

Interest paic $ 25,38 $ 27,37

Management fees and expenses paid to aff $ 10,677 $ 12,95¢
Non-cash investing activities:

Net change in unrealized gain (loss) on avai-for sale securitie $ 123,75. $ 155,48t
Non-cash financing activities:

Common dividends declared, not yet p $ 92,431 $ 112,94¢




See accompanying notes to consolidated financ@dstents




CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Company”) weganized in Maryland on June 1, 2007. The Compgamymenced operations on
November 21, 2007 when it completed its initial puibffering. The Company elected to be taxed esahestate investment tru“REIT”)
under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amendddegulations promulgated thereunder (the “Qodehe Company formed the
following wholly-owned qualified REIT subsidiarie€himera Securities Holdings, LLC in July 2008;iiGéra Asset Holding LLC and
Chimera Holding LLC in June 2009; and Chimera Sgddblding LLC in January 2010 which is a whobiyrned subsidiary of Chimera As
Holding LLC. In July 2010, the Company formed Clvading Company LLC, a wholly-owned taxable REIDsidiary (“TRS").

Annaly Capital Management, Inc. (“Annaly”) owns apximately 4.38% of the Company’s common shardse Company is managed by
Fixed Income Discount Advisory Company (“FIDAC™y) smvestment advisor registered with the Securiied Exchange Commission
(“SEC"). FIDAC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Aaly.

2. Summary of the Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Basis of Presentation and Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemamdisrelated notes of the Company have been prepaeetordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United St@t@®AP"). In the opinion of management, all adjustits considered necessary for a fair
presentation of the Company's financial positi@suits of operations and cash flows have beendeduThese statements should be read in
conjunction with the consolidated financial stataemseand notes thereto included in the Annual Repofform 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2012. Certain prior year amounts baea reclassified to conform to the current yearésentation.

The consolidated financial statements include, oaresolidated basis, the Company’s accounts, tbeuats of its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
and variable interest entities (“VIEST) which the Company is the primary beneficiaryl gignificant intercompany balances and transasi
have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company uses securitization trusts considerée tVIEs in its securitization and re-securitiaatiransactions. VIEs are defined as
entities in which equity investors (i) do not hakie characteristics of a controlling financial ietst, and/or (ii) do not have sufficient equity at
risk for the entity to finance its activities witlioadditional subordinated financial support frothes parties. The entity that consolidates a
VIE is known as its primary beneficiary, and is geily the entity with (i) the power to direct thetivities that most significantly impact the
VIESs' economic performance, and (ii) the right ézeive benefits from the VIE or the obligation bsarb losses of the VIE that could be
significant to the VIE. For VIEs that do not haugbstantial on going activities, the power to ditbe activities that most significantly imp:
the VIES’ economic performance may be determinedrbgntity’s involvement with the design and stouetof the VIE.

(b) Statements of Financial Condition Presentation
The Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@ualdition separately present: (i) the Company'sdiassets and liabilities, and (ii) the

assets and liabilities of consolidated securittratiehicles. Assets of each consolidated VIE cdy lo@ used to satisfy the obligations of that
VIE, and the liabilities of consolidated VIEs arenarecourse to the Company.




The Company has aggregated all the assets anlitigsbdf the consolidated securitization vehialie to the determination that these entities
are substantively similar and therefore a furthisagigregated presentation would not be more mefuifithe notes to the consolidated
financial statements describe the Company’s dasséts and liabilities and the assets and liaslibf consolidated securitization

vehicles. See Note 8 for additional informatiolated to the Company’s investments in consolidatazliritization vehicles.

(c) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handashddeposited overnight in money market fundschvare not bank deposits and are not
insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Inser@€orporation. There were no restrictions on eeshcash equivalents at March 31, 2
and December 31, 2012.

(d) Agency and Non-Agency Residential Mortgage-Baeld Securities

The Company invests in residential mortgage-baskeedrities (‘RMBS”) representing interests in ohtigns backed by pools of mortgage
loans. The Company delineates between Agency REBSNon-Agency RMBS as follows: Agency RMBS are tgage pass-through
certificates, collateralized mortgage obligatiofS\]Os"), and other RMBS representing interestsrimloligations backed by pools of
mortgage loans issued or guaranteed by agenctbe &f.S. Government, such as Ginnie Mae, or felyechhrtered corporations such as
Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae where principal and @gerepayments are guaranteed by the respectineyagéthe U.S. Government or
federally chartered corporation. Non-Agency RMB8 ot issued or guaranteed by a U.S. Governmemdyger other institution and are
subject to credit risk. Repayment of principal amdrest on Non-Agency RMBS is subject to the genfance of the mortgage loans or
RMBS collateralizing the obligation.

The Company classifies its RMBS as availabledale, records investments at estimated fair vaduweacribed in Note 5 of these consolid
financial statements, and includes unrealized gaiuslosses considered to be temporary on all RMB8uding interest-only (“lO”¥trips, ir
Other comprehensive income (loss) in the Consa@iti&tatements of Operations and Comprehensive k¢bass). 10 strips are recorded at
estimated fair value and all unrealized gains asdds are included in earnings in the Consolidatattments of Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss). From time to timeyas of the overall management of its portfoltee Company may sell any of its RMBS
investments and recognize a realized gain or less@mponent of earnings in the Consolidated i&tatés of Operations and Comprehen:
Income (Loss) utilizing the average cost method.

The Company’s accounting policy for interest incamnel impairment related to its RMBS is as follows:

Interest Income Recognition

The recognition of interest income on RMBS secesittaries depending on the characteristics ofeberiy as follows:
Agency RMBS and Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASBcAunting Standards Codification (“ASC") 310-2mnrefundable Fees and Other
Costs(*“ASC 310-20") is applied to the recognition ofénést income for the following securities:

e Agency RMBS
e Non-Agency RMBS that meet all of the following condits at the acquisition date (referred to hereatetNonAgency
RMBS of High Credit Qualit”):

1. Rated AA or higher by a nationally recognized creafing agency. The Company uses the lowestgauailable

2. The Company expects to collect all of the sec’s contractual cash flow

3. The security cannot be contractually prepaid sut the Company would not recover substantiallyodlits
recorded investmen

Under ASC 310-20, interest income, including premswand discounts associated with the acquisitidhexe securities, is recognized over
the life of such securities using the interest rndthased on the contractual cash flows of the #gcuin applying the interest method, the
Company considers estimates of future principgb@yenents in the calculation of the constant eféecyield. Differences that arise between
previously anticipated prepayments and actual yrepats received, as well as changes in future grepat assumptions, result in a
recalculation of the effective yield on the segudh a quarterly basis. This recalculation resulthe recognition of an adjustment to the
carrying amount of the security based on the revsepayment assumptions and a corresponding Be@adecrease in reported interest
income.




Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS that are purchased at a discount aatdhtie not of high credit quality at the time ofghase are accounted for under A
310-30,Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deterioda@redit Quality(*ASC 310-30") or ASC 325-4Beneficial Interests in
Securitized Financial AssefSASC 325-40") (referred to hereafter as “Non-AggmMBS Not of High Credit Quality”).

Non-Agency RMBS are accounted for under ASC 310-3Béffollowing conditions are met as of the acqignidate:

1. There is evidence of deterioration in credit qyadit the security from its inceptio
2. ltis probable that the Company will be unabledtiert all contractual cash flows of the secur

Non-Agency RMBS that are not within the scope of ASKD-30 are accounted for under ASC 325-40 if atitguisition date:

1. The security is not of high credit quality (definasl rated below AA or is unrated),
2. The security can contractually be prepaid or otigxgettled in such a way that the Company woutd-@mover substantially all
its recorded investmer

Interest income on Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Gt&uality is recognized using the interest methaded on management’s estimates
of cash flows expected to be collected. The effedtiterest rate on these securities is based oagemens estimate for each security of 1
projected cash flows, which are estimated baseabservation of current market information and ideassumptions related to fluctuations
in prepayment speeds and the timing and amouneditdosses. Quarterly, the Company reviews drappropriate, makes adjustments to its
cash flow projections based on inputs and analyesesved from external sources, internal modeld,tha Company’s judgments about
prepayment rates, the timing and amount of credids, and other factors. Changes in the amouruarairding of cash flows from those
originally projected, or from those estimated &t ldist evaluation date, are considered to be githstive changes or adverse changes. For
securities accounted for under ASC 325-40, anytipesbr adverse change in cash flows that doesasuft in the recognition of an other-
than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) results in a pp&ctive increase or decrease in the effectivedsteate used to recognize interest
income. For securities accounted for under ASC 31,0snly significant positive changes are refleqgieaspectively in the effective interest
rate used to recognize interest income. Adverse@és in cash flows expected to be collected arerghy treated consistently for RMBS
accounted for under ASC 325-40 and ASC 310-30,gametrally result in recognition of an OTTI with albange in the effective interest rate
used to recognize interest income.

Impairment
Considerations Applicable to all RMBS

When the fair value of an available-for-sale RMB3eiss than its amortized cost, the security isiciened impaired. On at least a quarterly
basis, the Company evaluates its securities forlOTthe Company intends to sell an impaired siéguor it is more-likely-than-not that the
Company will be required to sell an impaired sagusefore its anticipated recovery, then the Comgpanst recognize an OTTI through a
charge to earnings equal to the entire differerte/den the investment’s amortized cost and itsvinte at the measurement date. If the
Company does not intend to sell an impaired sgcarit it is not more-likely-than-not that it woude required to sell an impaired security
before recovery, the Company must further evaltraesecurity for impairment due to credit lossd® Tredit component of OTTI is
recognized in earnings and the remaining or nodiccemponent is recorded as a component of Othpecehensive income (loss) (“OCI").
Following the recognition of an OTTI through eaigsna new amortized cost basis is establishedhéosécurity and subsequent recoveries in
fair value may not be adjusted through earnings.




When evaluating whether the Company intends toageilinpaired security or will more-likely-tharet be required to sell an impaired sect
before recovery, the Company makes judgments tratider among other things, its liquidity, leveragentractual obligations, and targeted
investment strategy to determine its intent antitplto hold the investments that are deemed ingghirThe determination as to whether an
OTTI exists is subjective as such determinatioeshaised on factual information available at theetohassessment as well as the Company’s
estimates of future conditions. As a result, taiednination of OTTI and its timing and amount#@séd on estimates that may change
materially over time.

The Company’s estimate of the amount and timingash flows for its RMBS is based on its reviewtaf tinderlying securities or mortgage
loans securing the RMBS. The Company consideterigal information available and expected futuesfprmance of the underlying
securities or mortgage loans, including timing xypected future cash flows, prepayment rates, diefatds, loss severities, delinquency rates,
percentage of non-performing loans, extent of ¢magpport available, Fair Isaac Corporation (“FIG®Eores at loan origination, year of
origination, loan-to-value ratios, geographic cartcations, as well as reports by credit rating &ges) such as Moody’s Investors Service,
Inc., Standard & Poor’s Rating Services or FitchifRgs, Inc., general market assessments and dialegh market participants. As a result,
substantial judgment is used in the Company’s amatp determine the expected cash flows for itBSM

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS of High Credit Quality

The impairment assessment for Non-Agency RMBS ghHiredit Quality involves comparing the presentgaf the remaining cash flows
expected to be collected to the amortized cost@ecurity at the assessment date. The discatentised to calculate the present value ¢
expected future cash flows is based on the se@ugffective interest rate as calculated under 83GQ-20 (i.e., the discount rate implicit in
the security as of the last measurement datejhelpresent value of the remaining cash flows etgoketo be collected is less than the
amortized cost basis, an OTTI is recognized iniagafor the difference. This amount is considdrmede the credit loss component; the
remaining difference between amortized cost andaineralue of the security is considered to beph#ion of loss recognized in other
comprehensive income (l0ss).

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eaugsrfor the credit loss component, a new amortized lsasis is established for the security
and subsequent recoveries in fair value may neaidjested through earnings.

Considerations Applicable to Non-Agency RMBS Not of High Credit Quality

Non-Agency RMBS within the scope of ASC 325-40 or ASID-30 are considered other-than-temporarily ingghwhen the following two
conditions exist: (1) the fair value is less the amortized cost basis, and (2) there has beadwarse change in cash flows expected to be
collected from the last measurement date (i.e e@vchanges in either the amount or timing of das¥s from those previously expected).

The OTTI is separated into a credit loss compotiettis recognized in earnings and the portioros$ Irecognized in other comprehensive
income (loss). The credit component is compriseth@fimpact of the fair value decline due to changeassumptions related to default
(collection) risk and prepayments. The portionassl recognized in other comprehensive income (tmsjprises the change in fair value of
the security due to all other factors, includingeges in benchmark interest rates and market liguith determining the OTTI related to
credit losses for securities, the Company comphwepresent value of the remaining cash flows ae§ufor prepayments expected to be
collected at the current financial reporting dat¢hte present value of the remaining cash flowetqa to be collected at the original
purchase date (or the last date those estimatesregsed for accounting purposes). The discaatetused to calculate the present value of
expected future cash flows is the effective interate used for income recognition purposes asm@ted under ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.

Following the recognition of an OTTI through eaugsrfor the credit component, a new amortized casishis established for the security and
subsequent recoveries in fair value may not bessaljuthrough earnings. However, to the extentttteak are subsequent increases in cash
flows expected to be collected, the OTTI previousigorded through earnings may be accreted indodast income following the guidance in
ASC 325-40 or ASC 310-30.




The determination of whether an OTTI exists andpifthe extent of the credit component is sulifesignificant judgment and management’
estimates of both historical information availabtehe time of assessment, the current market@mwient, as well as the Company’s
estimates of the future performance and projeatesat and timing of cash flows expected to be ctdlé on the security. As a result, the
timing and amount of OTTI constitutes an accounéstimate that may change materially over time.

(e) Interest-Only RMBS

The Company invests in IO Agency and Non-Agency FBHips. 10 RMBS strips represent the Compariglstito receive a specified
proportion of the contractual interest flows of talateral. The Company has accounted for IO RMBs at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in the Company’s ConsolidatedeBtanhts of Operations and Comprehensive Income JLdsgse Company has elected the
fair value option to account for IO RMBS stripssimplify the reporting of changes in fair valudhe 10 RMBS strips are included in RME
at fair value, on the accompanying Consolidatete8tants of Financial Condition. Interest incomd©rRMBS strips is accrued based on
the outstanding notional balance and the securtyrgractual terms, and amortization of any premaurdiscount is calculated in accordance
with ASC 325-40. Changes in fair value are pregbimeNet unrealized gains (losses) on intemdi- RMBS on the Consolidated Statemer
Operations and Comprehensive Income (Loss). Isttémeome reported on |0 RMBS strips was $3.5 onilland $6.0 million for the quarters
ended March 31, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

(f) Securitized Loans Held for Investment and Relagd Allowance for Loan Losses

The Company’s securitized residential mortgagedame comprised of fixed-rate and variable-ratedoaviortgage loans are designated as
held for investment, and are carried at their ppialcbalance outstanding, plus any premiums, lesdnts and allowances for loan

losses. Interest income on loans held for investriserecognized over the expected life of the foasing the interest method. Nonrefund:
fees and costs related to acquiring the Compamysrgized residential mortgage loans are recoghiizeexpenses over the life of the
associated debt using the interest method of &atidn. Income recognition is suspended for loahen, based on information from the
servicer, a full recovery of interest or princippgicomes doubtful. The Company estimates the &hirevof securitized loans for disclosure
purposes only as described in Note 5 of these ¢idased financial statements.

(9) Allowance for Loan Losses — Securitized Loansétd for Investment

The securitized loan portfolio is comprised prirhaief non-conforming, single family, owner occupied, jumbeinge loans that are r
guaranteed as to repayment of principal or inter8stcuritized loans are serviced and modified tpiml-party servicer. The Compa
generally has the ability to approve certain loasdifications and determine the course of actiobddaken as it relates to certain loar
technical default, including whether or not to pred with foreclosure.

The Company has established an allowance for lossek related to securitized loans that is composadjeneral and specific reserve.
general reserve relates to loans that have notibe@ndually evaluated for impairment. The gendeeserve is based on historical loss t
for pools of loans with similar credit charactadst adjusted for current trends and conditions.

Certain loans are individually evaluated for impant, including securitized loans modified by teevicer and loans more than 60 days
delinquent. Loan modifications made by the servéze evaluated to determine if they constitutatited debt restructurings (“TDRs”). A
restructuring of a loan constitutes a TDR if thevigeer, for economic or legal reasons related #librrower's financial difficulties, grants a
concession to the borrower that it would not otligseveonsider. Impairment of modified loans consideio be TDRs is measured based ol
present value of expected cash flows discountditedban’s effective interest rate at inceptiorthé present value of expected cash flows is
less than the recorded investment in the loan]lawance for loan losses is recognized with a @pomding charge to the provision for loan
losses. Impairment of all other loans individuaialuated is measured as the difference betweamibead principal balance and the
estimated fair value of the collateral, less estadaosts to sell. The Company charges off theesponding loan allowance and related
principal balance when the servicer reports azedlloss. A complete discussion of securitizedsdseld for investment is included in Note 4
to these consolidated financial statements.




(h) Repurchase Agreements

The Company finances the acquisition of a signifigaortion of its Agency mortgage-backed securitiih repurchase agreements. The
Company has evaluated each agreement and deterthateshch of the repurchase agreements be acddontas secured borrowings. None
of the Companys repurchase agreements are accounted for as centpaf linked transactions. As a result, the Camgseparately accour
for the financial assets posted as collateral atated repurchase agreements in the accompanyirspladated financial statements.

(i) Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferreda Consolidated VIEs, and Securitized Debt, Loans He for Investment

The Company has issued securitized debt to finarmation of its residential mortgage loan and RMB&folios. Certain transactions
involving residential mortgage loans are accoufdeés secured borrowings, and are recorded asutieed loans held for investment” and
the corresponding debt as “Securitized debt, |teds for investment” in the Consolidated StatemehtisSinancial Condition. These
securitizations are collateralized by residentijlistable or fixed rate mortgage loans that hawmlpdaced in a trust and pay interest and
principal to the debt holders of that securitizatidRe-securitization transactions classified axctiitized debt, Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIES” reflect the tfans$o a trust of fixed or adjustable rate RMBS efhare classified as “Non-Agency RMBS
transferred to consolidated VIES” that pay inteeesd principal to the debt holders of that re-s#ization. Re-securitization transactions
completed by the Company that did not qualify dsssare accounted for as secured borrowings. Thikeisoof securitized debt have no
recourse to the Company and the Company does c&ivecany interest or principal paid on such déliite associated securitized debt is
carried at amortized cost. The Company estimatesaiin value of its securitized debt for disclospteposes as described in Note 5 to these
consolidated financial statements.

(j) Fair Value Disclosure

A complete discussion of the methodology utilizgdte Company to estimate the fair value of itaficial instruments is included in Note 5
to these consolidated financial statements.

(k) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company’s investment policies permit it to eiméo derivative contracts, including interesteratvaps and interest rate caps, as a means
of managing its interest rate risk. The Compangrids to use interest rate derivative instrumenisanage interest rate risk rather than to
enhance returns. Interest rate swaps are recadgleither assets or liabilities in the Consolid&&ttements of Financial Condition and
measured at fair value. Net payments on inteegstswaps are included in the Consolidated StatesneéiCash Flows as a component of net
income (loss). Unrealized gains (losses) on istai@e swaps are removed from net income (losajriee at cash flows from operating
activities. The Company estimates the fair valumterest rate swaps as described in Note 5 o&thessolidated financial statements.

The Company elects to net by counterparty thevidine of interest rate swap contracts. These aotsticontain legally enforceable provisi
that allow for netting or setting off of all inddial swaps receivable and payable with each cquantgrand, therefore, the fair value of those
swap contracts are reported net by counterpare cfedit support annex provisions of the Compaimj&rest rate swap contracts allow the
parties to mitigate their credit risk by requirithge party which is in a net payable position totpodlateral. As the Company elects to net by
counterparty the fair value of interest rate swapti@acts, it also nets by counterparty any colidtexchanged as part of the interest rate swap
contracts.

() Sales, Securitizations, and Re-Securitizations

The Company periodically enters into transactionafich it sells financial assets, such as RMB#, mortgage loans. Gains and losses on
sales of assets are calculated using the averagienethod whereby the Company records a gain erdoghe difference between the average
amortized cost of the asset and the proceeds freradle. In addition, the Company from time toetisecuritizes or re-securitizes assets and
sells tranches in the newly securitized asset&sé& transactions may be recorded as either saldb@assets contributed to the securitization
are removed from the Consolidated Statements @frigial Condition and a gain or loss is recognipeds secured borrowings whereby the
assets contributed to the securitization are natadgnized but rather the debt issued by the demaiidn entity are recorded to reflect the
term financing of the assets. In these securitinatand re-securitizations, the Company may retamor or subordinated interests in the
securitized and/or re-securitized assets.
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(m) Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REITnédds to comply with the provision of the Codethwespect thereto. Accordingly, the
Company will not be subject to federal, state caloncome tax to the extent that qualifying distitions are made to stockholders and as

as certain asset, income, distribution and stoakesship tests are met. If the Company failed tdifyuas a REIT and did not qualify for
certain statutory relief provisions, the Companyitide subject to federal, state and local incaameg and may be precluded from qualify
as a REIT for the subsequent four taxable yealsviolg the year in which the REIT qualification wiast. The Company and CIM Trading
made a joint election to treat CIM Trading as a TRSsuch, CIM Trading is taxable as a domestiofparation and subject to federal, state,
and local income taxes based upon its taxable iecom

A tax position is recognized only when, based omagament’s judgment regarding the application obine tax laws, it is more likely than
not that the tax position will be sustained upoamination. The Company does not have any unrezedrax benefits that would affect its
financial position or require disclosure. No a@suor penalties and interest were necessary Bkofh 31, 2013 or December 31, 2012.

(n) Net Income per Share

The Company calculates basic net income per shyadé/liling net income for the period by the baskeighted-average shares of its common
stock outstanding for that period. Diluted netome per share takes into account the effect ofiddunstruments such as unvested restricted
stock.

(o) Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiarda granted to the employees of FIDAC and FIDA&8iates at the fair value of
the stock-based compensation provided. The Compeagures the fair value of the equity instrumeirigithe stock prices and other
measurement assumptions as of the earlier of diikeetate at which a performance commitment byehipient is reached or the date at
which the recipient’s performance is complete. Cengation expense related to the grants of stagcegnized over the vesting period of
such grants based on the fair value of the stoakamh quarterly vesting date, at which the recifsgerformance is complete.

Compensation expense for equity based awards grémtee Company’s independent directors is recmghpro-rata over the vesting period
of such awards, based upon the fair value of su@rds at the grant date.

(p) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andafisice of contingent assets and liabilities atdate of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses duengplorting period. Although the Compasigstimates contemplate current conditions
how it expects them to change in the future, ieessonably possible that actual conditions coulthaterially different than anticipated in
those estimates, which could have a material advsrpact on the Company’s results of operationsitnithancial condition. Management
has made significant estimates in accounting foonme recognition and OTTI on Agency and Non-AgeR&BS and IO RMBS (Note 3),
valuation of Agency and Non-Agency RMBS (Notes 8 &) and interest rate swaps (Notes 5 and 9)uaAcesults could differ materially
from those estimates.
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(q) Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Presentation

Balance Sheet (Topic 210)

On December 23, 2011, the FASB released Accou@iagdards Update (“ASU”) 2011-1Ralance Sheet (Topic 210): Disclosures about
Offsetting Assets and LiabilitiesUnder this update, the Company is required $oldse both gross information and net informatioou

both instruments and transactions eligible foretffa the statement of financial position and teati®ns subject to an agreement similar to a
master netting arrangement. The scope includésatiees, sale and repurchase agreements and essa@&sand repurchase agreements and
securities borrowing and securities lending arramgrgs. This disclosure is intended to enablenfired statement users to understand the
effect of such arrangements on the Company’s filmhposition. The Company adopted this guidamcehé first quarter of 2013. As this
standard only requires additional disclosure, thapéion of ASU 2011-11 did not have any effect lo@ tonsolidated financial

statements. The additional disclosures relatedgdCompany’s repurchase agreements and derivaregsesented in Note 14.

Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU 20133@nprehensive Income: Reporting of Amounts Refiesg$ut of Accumulated Other
Comprehensive IncomeThis update requires the disclosure of informratibout the amounts reclassified out of accumul@&t by
component. In addition, it requires presentatigimee on the face of the statement where net incerpeesented or in the Notes, significant
amounts reclassified out of accumulated OCI byréispective line items of net income, but only # mount reclassified is required under
GAAP to be reclassified to net income in its ertjiie the same reporting period. For other amotims are not required under GAAP to be
reclassified in their entirety to net income, assa@ference must be provided to other disclosuresired) under GAAP that provide additio
detail about those amounts. The Company adoptedjthiance in the first quarter of 2013. As thamdard only requires additional
disclosure, the adoption of ASU 2013-02 did notéhamy effect on the consolidated financial stateémefihe additional disclosures related to
accumulated OCI are presented in Note 11.

Broad Transactions

Receivables-Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors (Subt&di6-40)

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014R®tlassification of Residential Real Estate Cottdieed Consumer Mortgage Loans
Upon Foreclosure This update clarifies when the Company is caergid to have obtained physical possession, from-anbstance
possession or foreclosure, of a residential reategroperty collateralizing a mortgage loan. r€unir guidance indicates that the Company
should reclassify a collateralized mortgage loashghat the loan should be derecognized and thateml asset recognized when it
determines that there has been in substance ases®isn or foreclosure by the Company. This updiefiees the terrm substance
repossession or foreclosute reduce diversity in interpretation of when sachevent occurs. The guidance in this updateféstdfe for the
Company beginning January 1, 2015. The Compaaydhkiating the impact of this update.

3. Residential Mortgage-Backed Securities

The Company classifies its Non-Agency RMBS as gesgnior 10, subordinated, subordinated 10, and-Ngency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs. The Company also invests innfsgeRMBS. Senior interests in Non-Agency RMBS @wasidered to be entitled to the
first principal repayments in their pro-rata owrgpsinterests at the reporting date. The total\falue of the Non-Agency RMBS that are
held by consolidated re-securitization trusts w8 ®illion at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 20&8pectively. See Note 8 of these
consolidated financial statements for further déston of consolidated VIEs.

The following tables present the principal or nptibvalue, total premium, total discount, amortizedt, fair value, gross unrealized gains,

gross unrealized losses, and net unrealized gzss)(telated to the Company’s available-for-saleBS\portfolio as of March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012, by asset class.
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March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousand:

Net
Gross Gross Unrealizec
Principal ot Unrealizec Unrealizec
Notional Total Total Amortized Gain/
Value Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senio $ 12¢ $ - $ 69 $ 57 $ 69 $ 12 $ - $ 12
Senior intere-only 2,973,38 132,25: - 132,25: 120,05: 10,57¢ (22,779 (12,200
Subordinate 1,043,33. - (572,46:) 470,86¢ 585,34( 117,14. (2,67 114,47:
Subordinated
interes-only 249,46t 15,19: - 15,19: 14,53« 93t (1,597 (65€)
RMBS transferred
to
consolidated
variable interest
entities ("VIES" 4,444,16! 8,68t (1,994,73) 2,367,621  3,299,35! 931,72 - 931,72
Agency RMBS 1,623,24! 47,59) - 1,558,15 1,632,64 75,21 (728) 74,48¢
Total $10,333,71. $ 203,62 $(2,567,26) $4,544,15. $5,651,98! $1,135,600 $ (27,76¢ $1,107,83.
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Net
Gross Gross Unrealizec
Principal ot Unrealizec Unrealizec
Notional Total Total Amortized Gain/
Value Premium Discount Cost Fair Value Gains Losses (Loss)
Non-Agency RMBS
Senio $ 12¢ % - 8 B4 $ 72 % 88 $ 16 $ - 8 16
Senior intere-only 3,012,86i 135,86¢ - 135,86¢ 122,86¢ 7,97¢ (20,97Y (12,999
Subordinate 1,057,82. - (584,77)) 473,04¢ 547,79: 81,49: (6,747) 74,74¢
Subordinated
interes-only 256,07: 16,18( - 16,18( 16,25 1,46¢ (1,399 73
RMBS transferred
to
consolidated
variable interest
entities ("VIES" 4,610,10! 8,95t (2,088,12) 2,437,041 3,274,20 837,35: (297) 837,15t
Agency RMBS 1,756,58! 51,50: - 1,720,59° 1,806,69 86,41¢ (317) 86,10:
Total $10,693,57 $ 212,50! $(2,672,95) $4,782,81. $5,767,90! $1,014,72. $ (29,629 $ 985,09:

The table below presents changes in AccretabledY@lthe excess of the security’s cash flows etgqueto be collected over the Company’s
investment, solely as it pertains to the Compahiga-Agency RMBS portfolio accounted for accordinghe provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter Ende

March 31, March 31,

2013 2012

(dollars in thousands
Balance at beginning of peric $ 2,107,388 $ 2,342,46:
Purchase - 86,84"
Accretion (85,93 (95,109
Reclassification (to) from n«accretable differenc (6,632 (11,66:)
Sales (32) (21,662
Balance at end of peric $ 2,014,78 $ 2,300,87

The table below presents the outstanding prindipkdnce and related amortized cost at March 313 208 December 31, 2012 as it pertains
to the Company’s Non-Agency RMBS portfolio accounter according to the provisions of ASC 310-30.

For the Quarter For the Year

Ended Ended
December 31,
March 31, 201: 2012

(dollars in thousand:




Outstanding principal balanc

Beginning of perioc $ 4,508,47 $ 5,245,18.

End of perioc $ 4,346,04. $ 4,508,47!
Amortized cost

Beginning of perioc $ 2,268,75. $ 2,649,30:

End of perioc $ 2,209,141 $ 2,268,75.

The following tables present the gross unrealipsdds and estimated fair value of the CommaRWIBS by length of time that such securi
have been in a continuous unrealized loss positidvarch 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. All sgesrin an unrealized loss position h

been evaluated by the Company for OTTI as discussBote 2(d).
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March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized Loss Position for Less Unrealized Loss Position for 12

than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimate! Estimate: Estimate!
Number Number Number
Fair Unrealize« of Fair Unrealizet of Fair Unrealize« of
Value Losses  Securitie Value Losses  Securitie Value Losses  Securitie
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - - $ - $ = - % - $ - -
Senior intere-only 40,40( (7,269 23 25,39¢ (15,50¢) 15 65,79¢ (22,779 38
Subordinate: - - 1 17,72( (2,67)) 3 17,72( (2,679 4
Subordinated intere-only 8,61¢ (1,599 1 - - - 8,61¢ (1,599 1
RMBS transferred to consolidated
VIEs - - - - - - - - -
Agency RMBS 5,10¢ (702) 5 174 (26) 1 5,28 (728) 6
Total $ 54,120 $ (9,567 3C $ 43,29 $ (18,209 19 $ 97,41F $ (27,76F) 49
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Unrealized Loss Position for Le: Unrealized Loss Position for 12
than 12 Month: Months or More Total
Estimate! Estimate: Estimate:
Number Number Number
Fair Unrealizel of Fair Unrealizel of Fair Unrealizel of
Value Losses  Securitie Value Losses  Securitie Value Losses  Securitie
Nor-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - - $ - $ . - % - $ - -
Senior intere-only 17,76¢ (2,829 12 52,92( (18,14%) 26 70,68 (20,97Y) 38
Subordinates - - - 54,77 (6,747 5 54,77 (6,747 5
Subordinated intere-only - - - 9,65¢ (1,399 1 9,65¢ (1,399 1
RMBS transferred to consolidated
VIEs - - - 22,49( (197) 1 22,49( (297) 1
Agency RMBS 234 (7€) 2 99z (241 2 1,227 (317) 4
Total $ 17,99¢ $ (2,909 14 $140,83t $ (26,72%) 35 $158,83: $ (29,629 49

At March 31, 2013, the Company did not intend tbam®y of its RMBS that were in an unrealized lpssition, and it was not more likely
than not that the Company would be required totkee RMBS before recovery of their amortized basis, which may be at their maturity.
With respect to RMBS held by consolidated VIEs, abdity of any entity to cause the sale by the Hor to the maturity of these RMBS is
either expressly prohibited, not probable, orrisiteéd to specified events of default, none of whielve occurred to date.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Agency 8MBre $728 thousand and $317 thousand at Marc®038B, and December 31, 2012,
respectively. Given the credit quality inherenfigency RMBS, the Company does not consider anii@ttirrent impairments on its Agency
RMBS to be credit related. In evaluating whethés more likely than not that it will be requiréal sell any impaired security before its
anticipated recovery, which may be at their maguthhe Company considers the significance of eaghstment, the amount of impairment,
the projected future performance of such impaiesmigties, as well as the Company’s current anitigated leverage capacity and liquidity
position. Based on these analyses, the Companynuatsl that at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2@0t@alized losses on its Agency
RMBS were temporary.

Gross unrealized losses on the Company’s Non-AgBMBS (including Non-Agency RMBS held by consoligdtVIEs) were $27.0 million
and $29.3 million at March 31, 2013 and Decembe2812, respectively. Based upon the most recaltiation, the Company does not
consider these unrealized losses to be indicafi@Td | and does not believe that these unrealipedds are credit related, but rather are due
to other factors. The Company has reviewed its Ngancy RMBS that are in an unrealized loss positiidentify those securities with
losses that are other-thtamporary based on an assessment of changes ifl@astexpected to be collected for such RMBS, Wwhionsider
recent bond performance and expected future pedioceof the underlying collateral.

A summary of the OTTI included in earnings for thearters ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 is preséeted.

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, March 31,

2013 2012

(dollars in thousands
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment lossi $ - $ (32,07
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeiine (loss (6,169 (16,287

Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (6,169 $ (48,369)




The following table presents a roll forward of ttredit loss component of OTTI on the Company’s Maency RMBS for which a portion «
loss was previously recognized in OCI. The taleléin@ates between those securities that are rexagr®TT]I for the first time as opposed
those that have previously recognized OTTI.
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For the Quarter Ende
March 31, March 31,

2013 2012
(dollars in thousands
Cumulative credit loss beginning balar $ 510,08¢ $  452,06(
Additions:
Other-thar-temporary impairments not previously recogni 712 31,82}
Reductions for securities sold during the pe (359 (290
Increases related to other-than-temporary impaitsnem securities with
previously recognized ott-thar-temporary impairment 5,451 16,531
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectduttoollected that are
recognized over the remaining life of the secL (1,949 (6,239
Cumulative credit loss ending balar $ 513,94¢ $ 493,90(

Cash flows generated to determine net other-thaapdeary credit impairment losses recognized iniegmare estimated using significant
unobservable inputs. The significant inputs usechéasure the component of OTTI recognized in agenfor the Company’s Non-Agency
RMBS are summarized as follows:

For the Quarter Ende

March 31, 201! March 31, 201:

Loss Severity

Weighted 45% 54%

Average

Range 41%- 69% 33%- 74%
60+ days delinquet

Weighted 16% 28%

Average

Range 0% - 34% 0% - 45%
Credit Enhancemer
1)

Weighted 10% 14%

Average

Range 0% - 48% 0%- 72%
3 Month CPFk

Weighted 18% 14%

Average

Range 0%- 25% 0%- 25%
12 Month CPF

Weighted 20% 16%

Average

Range 9% - 35% 9% - 35%

(1) Calculated as the combined credit enhancemahetRe-REMIC
and underlying from each of their respective capitaictures

The following tables present a summary of unredligains and losses at March 31, 2013 and Decenih@032. 10 RMBS included in the
tables below represent the right to receive a fipdqgbroportion of the contractual interest casiwl of the underlying principal balance of
specific securities. At March 31, 2013, IO RMBSillzanet unrealized loss of $5.9 million and hadueaortized cost of $162.0 million. At
December 31, 2012, I0 RMBS had a net unrealizesidd6$4.8 million and had an amortized cost of $Q6fillion. The fair value of IOs at
March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was $156lbmiand $161.2 million, respectively. All changadair value of 10s are reflected in
Net income (loss]

15




Gross Unrealized
Gain Included in
Accumulated

March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousands

Gross Unrealized

Gross Unrealized
Loss Included in

Accumulated

Gross Unrealized

Other Gain Included in Other Loss Included in Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Unrealized Gair Income Deficit Loss
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 12 $ - % 12 $ - $ - % -
Senior interest-
only - 10,57 10,57 - (22,779 (22,779
Subordinate 117,14: - 117,14: (2,67)) - (2,677)
Subordinated
interes-only - 93E 93E - (1,599 (1,599
RMBS transferre:
to
consolidated VIE 923,99: 7,73¢ 931,72 - - -
Agency RMBS 75,21¢ - 75,21¢ - (728) (728)
Total $ 1,116,351 $ 19.24. $ 1,135,600 $ (2,67) $ (25,099 $ (27,76€)
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands
Gross Unrealizel Gross Unrealizel
Gain Included in Loss Included in
Accumulated Gross Unrealize Accumulated Gross Unrealize
Other Gain Included in Other Loss Included in Total Gross
Comprehensive Accumulated Total Gross Comprehensive Accumulated Unrealized
Income Deficit Unrealized Gair Income Deficit Loss
Nonr-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 16 $ - $ 16 $ - $ - % =
Senior interest-
only - 7,97¢ 7,97¢ - (20,97H (20,979
Subordinate 81,49: - 81,49: (6,747 - (6,747
Subordinate
interes-only - 1,46¢€ 1,46¢€ - (1,399 (1,399
RMBS transferre:
to
consolidated VIE 829,30¢ 8,04¢ 837,35: (297 - (297
Agency RMBS 86,06: 357 86,41¢ - (317) (317)
Total $ 996,87¢ $ 17,84+ $ 1,014,72. $ (6,949 $ (22,68) $ (29,629

Changes in prepayments, actual cash flows, andflagt expected to be collected, among other itarsaffected by the collateral
characteristics of each asset class. The portfolioost heavily weighted to contain Non-Agency RMWBith credit risk. The Company
chooses assets for the portfolio after carefullgleating each investment’s risk profile.

The following tables provide a summary of the Compst RMBS portfolio at March 31, 2013 and Decem®gy2012.

March 31, 201:

December 31, 201

Principal Principal Weightec
or Notiona Weighted or Notiona Average
Value at Weightec Average Value at Weightec Yield at
PeriodEnd  Average  Weightec  Weightec Yieldat PeriodEnd Average Weightec Weightec Period-
(dollarsin  Amortizec  Average Average Period-End (dollarsin  Amortizec  Average Average End
thousands Cost Basi Fair Value Coupon (1) thousands Cost Basi Fair Value Coupon (1)
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Senior $ 12€ $ 449: $ 54.8¢ 0.0(% 11.9% $ 12¢ $ 57.02 $ 67.0C 0.0(% 11.9%
Senior, interest onl $2,973,38 % 448 % 4.04 1.6&% 10.2% $3,012,861 $ 451 $ 4.0¢ 1.7¢% 10.36%
Subordinate! $1,04333 $ 451 $ 56.1( 3.1% 10.81% $1,057,82. $ 44.7: $ 51.7¢ 3.1&% 11.0%
Subordinated, interest or $ 249,46t $ 6.0¢ $ 5.8: 2.11% 8.2¢% $ 256,07. $ 6.3z $ 6.3t 2.25% 8.9(%
RMBS transferred to
consolidated
variable interest entitie $4,4441601 $ 543t $ T75.7¢ 4.82% 15.5¢% $4,610,10 $ 53.9¢ $ 72.5( 4.8¢% 15.44%
Agency Mortgag-Backed
Securities $1,623,24 $ 103.1f $ 108.0¢ 4.57% 3.55% $1,756,58¢ $ 103.0¢ $ 108.2¢ 4.65% 3.5%

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period er

The following table presents the weighted averagditrating, based on the lowest rating availablehe Company’s Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2!



March 31 December 3:

201z 2012
AAA 0.01% 0.01%
AA 0.41% 0.4¢%
BB 1.41% 1.41%
B 1.16% 1.1%
Below B or not rate! 97.01% 96.9%
Total 100.00% 100.0(%

Actual maturities of RMBS are generally shortentlhiae stated contractual maturities
by the contractual lives of the underlying mortgageeriodic payments of principal and prepaymehtwiacipal. The following tables
provide a summary of the fair value and amortizest of the Company’s RMBS at March 31, 2013 andebdzer 31, 2012 according to their
estimated weighted-average life classificationbe Weighted-average lives of the RMBS in the tabkdsw are based on lifetime expected
prepayment rates using an industry prepayment nfodéie Agency RMBS portfolio and the Company’sayment assumptions for the

Non-Agency RMBS. The prepayment model considers cusiiefd, forward yield, steepness of the interas¢ rcurve, current mortgage ra
mortgage rates of the outstanding loan, loan agegim and volatility.
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March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi

Greater than

Greater than five
one years and
year and les less
Less than than five than ten Greater than
one yeal years years ten year: Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniot $ - $ - $ 68 $ - $ 69
Senior intere-only 244 49,14 61,88¢ 8,77¢ 120,05:
Subordinate: 5,41 49,83 351,51« 178,57¢ 585,34(
Subordinated intere-only - - 8,61°F 5,91¢ 14,53
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 8,48¢ 310,38t 1,911,641 1,068,83 3,299,35!I
Agency RMBS 10z 1,397,45 235,08! - 1,632,64
Total fair value $ 14247 $ 1,806,82 $ 256880 $ 1,262,11. $ 5,651,98:
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniot - $ - % 57 $ - % 57
Senior intere-only 51z 60,30" 64,00" 7,42¢ 132,25:
Subordinate: 4,30( 42,75¢ 293,60( 130,21! 470,86¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 10,20¢ 4,98¢ 15,19:
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 7,86( 243,33: 1,339,73! 776,70! 2,367,62!
Agency RMBS 12€ 1,331,99: 226,03¢ - 1,558,15!
Total amortized cos $ 1280( $ 1,678,38' $ 1,93364 $ 919,32¢ $ 4,544 15.
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Weighted Average Lifi
Greater thai
Greater thai five
one years and
year and les less
Less than than five than ten Greater thai
one yeal years years ten years Total
Fair value
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ - $ - % 88 $ - % 88
Senior intere-only 35¢ 47,20t 66,92’ 8,37¢ 122,86
Subordinate: 4,092 23,94¢ 359,31( 160,44« 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only - - 9,65¢ 6,59¢ 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 12,11¢ 312,69( 2,055,56! 893,82¢ 3,274,20:
Agency RMBS 14€ 1,802,72 3,831 - 1,806,69
Total fair value $ 16,71« $ 2,186,56: $ 2,49538 $ 1,069,24 $ 5,767,90!
Amortized cos
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ - $ - % 72 $ - % 72
Senior intere-only 657 58,03" 70,04« 7,13( 135,86¢
Subordinate: 2,64¢ 20,59 318,42 131,38! 473,04¢
Subordinated intere-only - - 11,05 5,12¢ 16,18(
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 11,18¢ 248,69 1,493,64 683,51¢ 2,437,04:
Agency RMBE 157 1,716,96. 3,47¢ - 1,720,59!
Total amortized cos $ 14647 $ 2,04429. $ 1,896,711 $ 827,16 $ 4,782,81

The Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is subject to credk. The Company seeks to mitigate credit risktigh its asset selection process. The
Non-Agency RMBS portfolio is primarily collateralizdxry what the Company classifies as Alt-A first limortgages. The Company
categorizes collateral as Alt-A regardless of whethe loans were originally described as “prinfahé behavior of the collateral when the
Company purchased the security more typically rédesAlt-A. The Company defines Alt-A collaterddaracteristics to be evidenced by the
60+ day delinquency bucket of the pool being grrethizn 5% and the weighted average FICO scordmdinhe of origination as greater than
650. At March 31, 2013, 99.5% of the Non-Agency BB/collateral was Alt-A. At December 31, 2012,849.0f the Non-Agency RMBS
collateral was A-A.



The Non-Agency RMBS in the Portfolio have the fellog collateral characteristics at March 31, 20048 Becember 31, 2012.
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December 31,

March 31, 201: 2012
Weighted average maturity (yea 24.4 24.¢
Weighted average amortized loan to value 71.(% 71.€%
Weighted average FICO ( 71€ 717
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ 448.( $ 4531
Weighted average percentage owner occu 85.(% 85.1%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 65.€% 65.5%
Weighted average current credit enhancer 2.8% 3.1%
Weighted average geographic concentration of tog fi
States CA 36.8% CA 36.7%
FL 8.7% FL 8.7%
NY 6.5% NY 6.4%
VA 2.5% VA 2.4%
NJ 2.8% NJ 2.8%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the collhta the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The table below presents the origination year efuhderlying loans related to the Company’s pddfof Non-Agency RMBS at March 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012.

March 31 Decembe

QOrigination Yeal 201z 31, 201.
2000 0.2% 0.2%
2001 0.2% 0.2%
2003 0.4% 0.4%
2004 0.6% 0.€%
2005 14.5% 14.2%
2006 35.1% 34.6%
2007 46.(% 46.7%
2008 3.0% 3.C%

Total 100.(% 100.(%

During the quarter ended March 31, 2013, the Compaid RMBS with a carrying value of $176 thousé&mdrealized gains of $6
thousand. During the quarter ended March 31, 20E2Company sold RMBS with a carrying value of $63illion for realized gains of
$16.0 million.

4. Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company is considered to be the primary beiagjiof VIEs formed for the purpose of securitizwbole mortgage loans. Refer to Note
8 for additional details regarding the Companyinement with VIEs.

The securitized loans held for investment are edrait their principal balance outstanding, plusnorized premiums, less unaccreted
discounts and an allowance for loan losses. Duling/ear ended December 31, 2012, the Company lidetea the CSMC 2012-CIM1,
CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM3 Trusts (the “CSNIKDsts”). The CSMC Trusts are securitizationsatetalized by high quality,
jumbo, prime, residential mortgage loans. The Comigeansferred $1.5 billion in principal value teetCSMC Trusts that was recorded i
secured borrowing. In these transactions, the Camnpiaanced $1.4 billion of AAA-rated, AA-rated, d\-rated fixed rate bonds by selling
the bonds to third party investors for net procesfdkl .4 billion. There were no new securitizafaturing the quarter ended March 31, 2013.

The following table provides a summary of the chemim the carrying value of securitized loans Hietdnvestment at March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:

For the Quarter For the Year
Ended Ended
December 31,
March 31, 201! 2012
(dollars in thousands
Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,300,13 $ 256,63:
Purchase - 1,531,01.
Principal paydown (211,439 (477,55Y
Net periodic amortization (accretio (5,959 (9,597)
Change to loan loss provisi (4249) (36€)

Balance, end of peric $ 1,082,311 $ 1,300,13
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The following table represents the Company’s séized residential mortgage loans classified as falthvestment at March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012:

March 31 December 3:

201z 201z

(dollars in thousand:
Securitized loans, at amortized ¢ $ 1,094,28 $ 1,311,75
Less: allowance for loan loss 11,96¢ 11,62«
Securitized loans held for investmt $ 1,082,311 $ 1,300,13

The securitized loan portfolio is collateralizeddnyme, jumbo, first lien residential mortgagesadfich 34.3% were originated during 2012,
41.5% were originated during 2011, 8.8% during 2@I@ the remaining 15.4% of the loans were origih@rior to 2010. A summary of k
characteristics of these loans follows.

March 31, 201 December 31, 201

Number of loan: 1,38i 1,61¢
Weighted average maturity (yea 28.C 28.2
Weighted average loan to value 70.7% 71.2%
Weighted average FICO ( 76E 76€
Weighted average loan balance (in thousa $ T773.¢ $ 794.1
Weighted average percentage owner occu 94.4% 94.¢%
Weighted average percentage single family resid 69.4% 70.€%
Weighted average geographic concentration of tegpdtate: CA 37.(% CA 38.1%
NY 6.C% VA 6.3%
VA 5.5% NY 6.3%
WA 5.2% WA 5.2%
MD 4.8% NJ 4.€%

(1) Value represents appraised value of the codlases the time of loan originatio
(2) FICO as determined at the time of loan origorat

The following table summarizes the changes in tlesvance for loan losses for the securitized mayggan portfolio for the quarters ended
March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012:

For the Quarter Ende
December 31,

March 31, 201 2012

(dollars in thousands
Balance, beginning of peric $ 11,62 $ 11,26+
Provision for loan losse 424 764
Charge-offs (83) (409
Balance, end of peric $ 11,96¢ $ 11,62¢

The Company has established an allowance for lossek related to securitized loans that is compafsadjeneral and specific reserve. The
balance in the allowance for loan losses relatebeqeneral reserve at March 31, 2013 and Dece&ihe012 was $4.5 million and $5.0
million, respectively. The balance in the allowarfior loan losses related to the specific reseriaach 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012

was $7.5 million and $6.6 million, respectively.

The Company’s overall provision for loan lossedascribed in Note 2(g). The Company’s generalrvesis based on historical loss rates for
pools of loans with similar credit characteristiadjusted for current trends and market conditior@uding current trends in delinquencies
and severities. The Company has established #ispeserve that reflects consideration of loar@ethan 60 days delinquent, loans in
foreclosure, borrowers that have declared bankyypitd real estate owned. The loan loss provisitated to these loans is measured as the
difference between the unpaid principal balancethadstimated fair value of the property secutirgmortgage, less estimated costs to
sell. The specific reserve also reflects constitaraf concessions granted to borrowers by theicerin the form of modifications (i.e.,
reductions). Loan loss provisions related to thaeedifications are based on the contractual pradaimd interest payments, post-
modification, discounted at the loan’s originaleefive interest rate.
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The total unpaid principal balance of impaired wé&r which the Company established a specificrueseas $32.3 million and $29.1 million
at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respégctivsterest income on impaired loans is not digant. The Company’s recorded
investment in impaired loans determined to be TERsvhich there is a related allowance for credises at March 31, 2013 and December
31, 2012 was $23.2 million and $21.8 million, redpesly. The total unpaid principal balance of Forpaired loans for which the Company
established a general reserve was $1.0 billion$dn8l billion at March 31, 2013 and December 31,20&spectively. The Company’s
recorded investment in loans that are not impédiveavhich there is a related general reserve feditiosses at March 31, 2013 and Decet
31, 2012 was $1.1 billion and $1.3 billion, resjpesy.

The following table summarizes the outstandinggpal balance of loans 30 days delinquent and greet reported by the servicer at March
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

30 Days 60 Days 90+ Days
Delinquent Delinquent Delinquent  Bankruptcy  Foreclosure REO Total
(dollars in thousand:
March 31, 201 $ 0 $ 50 $ 477 $ 0 $ 520¢ $ 1,39C $ 11,87:
December 31, 20 $ 3,11C $ 1,18¢ $ 4,04 $ 0 $ 4,247 $ 1,39C $ 13,97¢

With the exception of its ability to approve centédan modifications, the Company is not involveithvihe servicing or modification of loans
held for investment. The trustee and servicehefrespective securitization are responsible foricgieg and modifying these loans. The
Company is required to make certain assumptioas@ounting for loans held for investment due tolitlwéation of information available to
the Company. The following table presents thedahat were modified by the servicer during thergara ended March 31, 2013 and 2012.

Amortized Cost o Amortized Cost o
Modified Loans For Modified
Number of Unpaid Principa Unpaid Principa Which Loans For Which The
Loans Balance of Modifie  Balance of Modifier There is an is
Modified During Loans Loans Amortized Cost @ Allowance for No Allowance for
Period (Pre-modification)  (Pos-modification) Modified Loans Loan Losse: Loan Losse:
(dollars in thousands
Quarter Ende:
March 31,
2013 3 $ 2,34¢ % 2,35¢ % 2,24t $ 2,248 $ 0
March 31,
2012 2 $ 1,30¢ $ 1,37, $ 1,388 $ 1,388 $ 0

Loans are modified by the servicer as a methodss mitigation. Based on the information availableing the quarter ended March 31,
2013, the Company determined that all loans matiifig the servicer were considered TDRs, as defimeltr GAAP. A TDR is generally a
modification of a loan to a borrower that is expading financial difficulties, where a lender agrée terms that are more favorable to the
borrower than are otherwise available in the cumesrket. All loan modifications during the quast@nded March 31, 2013 and 2012
included a reduction of the stated interest ratesans modified by the servicer have been indivijuassessed for impairment and
measurement of impairment is based on the excebg oécorded investment in the loan over the prtesmue of the expected cash flows,
post modification, discounted at the loan’s effeeiinterest rate at inception. In the absencalditimnal loan modifications by the servicer in
future periods that are considered to be TDRs$#hé million specific reserve related to TDRs adafrch 31, 2013 will be recognized in net
income in future periods by way of a decrease énpitovision for loan losses. If there are furtimedifications, the reduction of the cashflow
is reflected in the provision for loan losses.

As of March 31, 2013, there were no loans that weodified in the past twelve months and delinquemscheduled payments.
5. Fair Value Measurements

The Company follows fair value guidance in accomawith GAAP to account for its financial instruntenThe Company categorizes its
financial instruments, based on the priority of ityguts to the valuation technique, into a threeldair value hierarchy. The fair value
hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted @siin active markets for identical assets or liabd (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs usecheasure the financial instruments fall withirfeliént levels of the hierarchy, the
categorization is based on the lowest level inpat is significant to the fair value measuremerthefinstrument. Financial assets and
liabilities recorded at fair value on the Consdi@hStatements of Financial Condition or disclasetthe related notes are categorized based
on the inputs to the valuation techniques as fadtow
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Level 1 — inputs to the valuation methodology awetgd prices (unadjusted) for identical assetsliabdities in active markets.

Level 2 — inputs to the valuation methodology imiglwquoted prices for similar assets and liabilitieactive markets, and inputs that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly, for substantially the fukttm of the financial instrument.

Level 3 — inputs to the valuation methodology amehservable and significant to fair value.

Fair value measurements categorized within Legk3sensitive to changes in the assumptions oradelbgy used to determine fair value
and such changes could result in a significaneiase or decrease in the fair value. For the Comgamyestments in Non-Agency RMBS
categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hiefay, the significant unobservable inputs include discount rates, assumptions relating to
prepayments, default rates and loss severitiesifieignt increases (decreases) in any of the distaies, default rates or loss severities in
isolation would result in a significantly lower @fier) fair value measurement. The impact of chaimgpsepayment speeds would have
differing impacts on fair value, depending on tbaiserity of the investment. Generally, a changthindefault assumption is accompanied by
directionally similar changes in the assumptioredu®r the loss severity and the prepayment speed.

Any changes to the valuation methodology are regtkisy management to ensure the changes are ateopts markets and products

evolve and the pricing for certain products becomesge transparent, the Company will continue tineeits valuation methodologies. The
methodology utilized by the Company for the peripdssented is unchanged. The methods used toqeadfair value calculation may not

be indicative of net realizable value or reflectofduture fair values. Furthermore, while the C@np believes its valuation methods are
appropriate and consistent with other market pggits, the use of different methodologies, or agxions, to determine the fair value of
certain financial instruments could result in datiént estimate of fair value at the reporting datee Company uses inputs that are current as
of the measurement date, which may include perddsarket dislocation, during which price transpememay be reduced.

During times of market dislocation, as has beereggpced for some time and continues to existotfgervability of prices and inputs can be
difficult for certain Non-Agency RMBS. If third piy pricing services are unable to provide a pfarean asset, or if the price provided by
them is deemed unreliable by the Company, theagket will be valued at its fair value as determhibg the Company without validation to
third-party pricing. In addition, validating thigghrty pricing for the Companyinvestments may be more subjective as fewerggzatits ma
be willing to provide this service to the Companliquid investments typically experience gregbeice volatility as an active market does
exist. Observability of prices and inputs can wsignificantly from period to period and may causgtruments to change classifications
within the three level hierarchy.

A description of the methodologies utilized by empany to estimate the fair value of its finan@iatruments by instrument class follows:
Short-term Instruments

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalentsuad interest receivable, dividends payable, aeduad interest payable are considered to
be a reasonable estimate of fair value due tohbe term nature of these financial instruments.

Agency and Nc-Agency RMBS

Generally, the Company determines the fair valuigsahvestment securities utilizing an internatprg model that incorporates such factors
as coupon, prepayment speeds, weighted averagedlfateral composition, borrower characteristeegyected interest rates, life caps,
periodic caps, reset dates, collateral seasonkpgeoted losses, expected default severity, cratidecement, and other pertinent factors.
Management reviews the fair values generated bynthael to determine whether prices are reflectivihe current market. Management
indirectly corroborates its estimates of the failue using pricing models by comparing its residtsidependent prices provided by dealers in
the securities and/or third party pricing servic€ertain very liquid asset classes, such as Agéregl-rate pass-throughs may be priced
using independent sources such as quoted pric8of8e-Announced (“TBA”) securities.
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The Agency RMBS market is considered to be an actiarket such that participants transact with sieffit frequency and volume to provide
transparent pricing information on an ongoing hasie liquidity of the Agency RMBS market and thmiarity of the Company’s securities
to those actively traded enable the Company torebsguoted prices in the market and utilize thaseep as a basis for formulating fair value
measurements. Consequently, the Company hasfidds&gency RMBS as having Level 2 inputs in thie f@lue hierarchy.

The Company'’s fair value estimation process for Maency RMBS utilizes inputs other than quoted @sithat are observed in the market.
The Company’s estimate of prepayment, default avdrity curves all involve Management judgment assumptions that are deemed to be
significant to the fair value measurement processch renders the resulting Ndxgency RMBS fair value estimates Level 3 inputshia fair
value hierarchy.

Interest Rate Sway

The Company utilizes dealer quotes to determindainealues of its interest rate swaps. The Camypaompares the dealer quotations
received to its own estimate of fair value to easdufor reasonableness. The dealer quotes in@goommon market pricing methods,
including a spread measurement to the Treasurg giglve or interest rate swap curve as well asnlyidg characteristics of the particular
contract. Interest rate swaps are modeled by tmep@ay by incorporating such factors as the termaturity, Treasury curve, overnight
index swap rates, and the payment rates on the figetion of the interest rate swaps. The Compasydiassified the characteristics used to
determine the fair value of interest rate swaplsea®l| 2 inputs in the fair value hierarchy.

The Company’s financial assets and liabilitiesiearat fair value on a recurring basis, including tevel in the fair value hierarchy, at March
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 is presented below.

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:;
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - $ 69
Senior intere-only - - 120,05:
Subordinater - - 585,34(
Subordinated intere-only - - 14,53«
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,299,35!
Agency RMBS - 1,632,64. -
Liabilities:

Interest rate sway - 48,53’ -
Total $ - $ 1,681,18 $ 4,019,34
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets:;
Non-Agency RMBS
Senior $ - $ - $ 88
Senior intere-only - - 122,86¢
Subordinater - - 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only - - 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI - - 3,274,20.
Agency RMBS - 1,806,69 -
Liabilities:
Interest rate sway - 53,93¢ -
Total $ - $ 1,860,631 $ 3,961,20:
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The table below provides a summary of the chanyésa fair value of securities classified as Leéak March 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012.

Fair Value Reconciliation, Level
For the Quarter For the Year

Ended Ended
December 31,
March 31, 201 2012

(dollars in thousand:

Non-Agency RMBS
Beginning balance Level 3 ass $ 3,961,200 $ 4,088,94!
Transfers in to Level 3 assi - -
Transfers out of Level 3 ass

Purchase 5,73( 122,50¢

Principal payment (106,34) (516,37()

Sales - (328,26)

Accretion of purchase discout 30,60 98,80:
Gains (losses) included in net inca

Other than temporary credit impairment los (6,16%) (132,25()

Realized gains (losses) on s¢ ©)] 48,43

Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (24%) 804
Gains (losses) included in other comprehernisiseme

Total unrealized gains (losses) for the pe 134,56 578,59:

Ending balance Level 3 ass $ 4,019,34 $ 3,961,20:

There were no transfers to or from Level 3 fordnarter ended March 31, 2013 and for the year ebdegmber 31, 2012.
Sensitivity of Significant Inputs

The significant unobservable inputs used in thevalue measurement of the Company’s Non-Agency BNMBe the weighted average
discount rates, constant prepayment speed (“CRRifulative default rate, and the loss severity.

Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the CPR, vaoyding to interest rates, the type of investmeaomditions in financial markets, and other
factors, none of which can be predicted with anyaiety. In general, when interest rates risés relatively less attractive for borrowers to
refinance their mortgage loans, and as a res@hgyment speeds tend to decrease. When intetesfa#l, prepayment speeds tend to
increase. For RMBS investments purchased at a prepas prepayment speeds increase, the amourdamhathe Company earns decreases
as the purchase premium on the bonds amortizess thsin expected. Conversely, decreases in prep#yspeeds result in increased income
and can extend the period over which the Compargrtizes the purchase premium. For RMBS investmpumtshased at a discount, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of incaan@dmpany earns increases from the acceleratitreaiccretion of the discount into
interest income. Conversely, decreases in prepayspeeds result in decreased income as the aatadtibe purchase discount into interest
income occurs over a longer period.

Cumulative default rates represent an annualiziedafedefault on a group of mortgages. The constafgult rate (“CDR”) represents the
percentage of outstanding principal balances irptia that are in default, which typically equatethe home being past 60-day and 90-day
notices and in the foreclosure process. When ttefates increase, expected cash flows on the ydgrcollateral decreases. When default
rates decrease, expected cash flows on the unigidypilateral increases.

Loss severity rates reflect the amount of loss etqukfrom a foreclosure and liquidation of the uhdeg collateral in the mortgage loan

pool. When a mortgage loan is foreclosed the tldis sold and the resulting proceeds are wsedttle the outstanding obligation. In
many circumstances, the proceeds from the sal@tfully repay the outstanding obligation. In thesses a loss is incurred by the

lender. Loss severity is used to predict how gdstiure losses are likely to be. An increaseosslseverity results in a decrease in expected
future cashflows. A decrease in loss severityltedu an increase in expected future cashflows.

The discount rate refers to the interest rate usd@scounted cash flow analysis to determine ttesgnt value of future cash flows. The
discount rate takes into account not just the tiadae of money, but also the risk or uncertaintyudiire cash flows. An increased uncerta
of future cash flows results in a higher discoatieér The discount rate used to calculate the ptesdue of the expected future cash flows is
based on the discount rate implicit in the secuaityf the last measurement date. As discourd mt&e up, the discounted cash flows are
reduced.

A summary of the significant inputs used to estartae fair value of Non-Agency RMBS as of March 2013 and December 31, 2012
follows:
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March 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Significant Inputs Significant Inputs

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Discount Discount Rate

Rate CPR CDR Loss Severity CPR CDR Loss Severity
Range Range
Nonr-Agency RMBS

Senior 8.0% 6%-6% 0%- 3% 50%- 57% 7.5% 11%-11% 0% - 3% 50%- 58%
Senior intere-only 14.9% 1%- 25% 0%- 25% 50%- 85% 13.9% 1%- 25% 0%- 25% 50%- 85%
Subordinatet 25.4% 1%-20% 0%- 25% 50%- 85% 25.9% 1%- 18% 0%- 21% 50%- 85%
Subordinated intere-only 13.8% 4%-12% 0%- 18% 50%- 61% 13.3% 4%-11% 0%- 21% 50%- 68%
RMBS transferred to 51% 1% -18% 0% -34%  50% - 85% 58% 1% -15% 0% -36%  50% - 85%

consolidated VIE:

All of the significant inputs listed have some degof market observability, based on the Compakysvledge of the market, information
available to market participants, and use of commarket data sources. Collateral default and legerity projections are in the form of
“curves” that are updated quarterly to reflect @mmpany’s collateral cash flow projections. Methoded to develop these projections
conform to industry conventions. The Company usssi@ptions it considers its best estimate of futash flows for each respective secu

The discount rates applied to the expected caslsfto determine fair value are derived from a raoiggbservable prices on securities bac
by similar collateral. As the market becomes nwrkess liquid, the availability of these obseneainiputs will change.

The prepayment speed specifies the percentage abthateral balance that is expected to pay offagh point in the future. The prepayment
speed is based on factors such as collateral Fi©f sloan-to-value ratio, debt-toeome ratio, and vintage on a loan level basisiausdalec
up or down to reflect recent collateral-specifieayment experience as obtained from remittancertsepnd market data services.

Default vectors are determined from the currenpépne” of loans that are more than 30 days dekmgiuin foreclosure, bankruptcy, or are
real estate owned (“REQ”). These delinquent loaterthine the first 30 months of the default cuBeyond month 30, the default curve
transitions to a value that is reflective of a portof the current delinquency pipeline.

The curve generated to reflect the Company’s expass severity is based on collatesjpécific experience with consideration given toec
mitigating collateral characteristics. Charact@&ssuch as seasoning are taken into considergicause severities tend to initially increase
on newly originated securities, before beginnindéacline as the collateral ages and eventuallylizta® Collateral characteristics such as
loan size, loan-to-value, and geographic locatibcodateral also effect loss severity.

Securitized Loans Held for Investment

The Company carries securitized loans held forstment at principal value, plus unamortized prensiuiess unaccreted discounts and an
allowance for loan losses. The Company estimateéair value of its securitized loans held foraatment by considering the loan
characteristics, including the credit charactegsstif the borrower, purpose of the loan, use ottikateral securing the loan, and
management’s expectations of general economic tonsdliin the sector and greater economy.

Repurchase Agreemet

Repurchase agreements are collateralized finati@ngactions utilized by the Company to acquir@gtment securities. Due to the short
term nature of these financial instruments, the gamy estimates and records the fair value of theyserchase agreements using the
contractual obligation plus accrued interest pagablmaturity.

Securitized Debt, Non-Agency RMBS Transferred tesGladated VIEs and Securitized Debt, Loans Heldrfeestment

The Company records securitized debt for certifisair notes financed without recourse to the Compagsecuritization or re-securitization
transactions treated as secured borrowings. Tihgp@oy carries securitized debt at the principadhed outstanding plus unamortized
premiums, less unaccreted discounts recorded inemtion with the financing of the loans or RMBSwhird parties. The premiums or
discounts associated with the financing of the siotecertificates are amortized over the contrddifieaof the instrument using the interest
method. The Company estimates the fair value airiiized debt by estimating the future cash flassociated with the underlying assets
collateralizing the secured debt outstanding. Thepany models the fair value of each underlyirggby considering, among other items,
the structure of the underlying security, coup@myiger, actual and expected defaults, actual apdated default severities, reset indices, and
prepayment speeds in conjunction with market resefar similar collateral performance and managehsesxpectations of general econol
conditions in the sector and other economic factors
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The following table presents the carrying value &idvalue, as described above, of the Compangantial instruments not carried at fair
value on a recurring basis at March 31, 2013 armzkeber 31, 2012.

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:
Level in Fai

Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value

Securitized loans held for investme 3 1,082,311 1,089,64.
Repurchase agreeme; 2 (1,420,37) (1,423,59)
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non

Agency RMBS 3 (1,241,29) (1,277,26)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loan

held for investmen 3 (959,60 (975,410

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Level in Fai
Value Carrying
Hierarchy Amount Fair Value

Securitized loans held for investme 3 1,300,13: 1,320,69
Repurchase agreeme! 2 (1,528,02) (1,531,51)
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non

Agency RMBS 3 (1,336,26) (1,334,55)
Securitized debt, collateralized by loan

held for investmen 3 (1,169,71) (1,194,74)

6. Repurchase Agreements

The Company had outstanding $1.4 billion and $ill®b of repurchase agreements with weighted ayetaorrowing rates of 0.50% and
0.52% and weighted average remaining maturitialays and 56 days as of March 31, 2013 and DeseBih 2012, respectively. At
March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, Agency RMIB8ged as collateral under these repurchase agnéeimed an estimated fair value
$1.5 billion and $1.6 billion, respectively. Theesage daily balances of the Company’s repurchgssements for the quarters ended March
31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were $1.5 billiah%in6 billion, respectively. The interest ratestefse repurchase agreements are
generally indexed to the one-month or the threetmbiBOR rate and re-price accordingly.

At March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the rdase agreements collateralized by Agency RMBS Ihadoilowing remaining
maturities.

December 31,

March 31, 201 2012

(dollars in thousands
Overnight $ 25,98: $ -
1-29 days 791,37. 732,80¢
30 to 59 day: 284,76 325,91!
60 to 89 day: 258,16« -
90 to 119 day 60,09( 211,13
Greater than or equal to 120 d: - 258,16¢
Total $ 1,420,37' $ 1,528,02!

At March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Compahnot have an amount at risk under its repwselegreements greater than 10% of
its equity with any counterparty.

7. Securitized Debt

All of the Company’s securitized debt is collateratl by residential mortgage loans or Non-AgencyB8M For financial reporting purposes,
the Company’s securitized debt is accounted faeasred borrowings. Thus, the residential mortdeges or RMBS held as collateral are
recorded in the assets of the Company as secudritzems held for investment or Non-Agency RMBS $farred to consolidated VIEs and the
securitized debt is recorded as a non-recoursiitjaib the accompanying Consolidated StatemefitSimancial Condition.

At March 31, 2013 the Company’s securitized deliateralized by residential mortgage loans hadimacfpal balance of $960.5 million. The
debt matures between the years 2023 and 2042. af¢hivB1, 2013 the debt carried a weighted averagieof financing equal to 3.35%. .



December 31, 2012 the Company'’s securitized ddlztemlized by residential mortgage loans hadiacgpal balance of $1.2 billion. The
debt matures between the years 2023 and 2042.eé¢iber 31, 2012 the debt carried a weighted ageras} of financing equal to 3.37%.
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At March 31, 2013 the Company’s securitized deliateralized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principaldrale of $1.3 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At MzrcB013 the debt carried a weighted average ddstamcing equal to 4.40%. At
December 31, 2012 the Company’s securitized ddlztemlized by Non-Agency RMBS had a principaldrade of $1.4 billion. The debt
matures between the years 2035 and 2047. At DemeBih 2012 the debt carried a weighted averageofdimiancing equal to 4.41%.

The carrying value of securitized debt is basedsamortized cost, net of premiums or discounisted to sales of senior certificates to third
parties. The following table presents the estihg@iéncipal repayment schedule of the securitizelok &t March 31, 2013 and December 31,
2012, based on expected cash flows of the resaentirtgage loans or RMBS, as adjusted for projeltisses on the underlying collateral of
the debt. All of the securitized debt recordethims Company’s Consolidated Statements of Fina@maldition is non-recourse to the
Company.

December 31,

March 31, 201 2012

(dollars in thousands
Within One Yeal $ 557,03t $ 658,42:
One to Three Yeal 689,10: 793,15(
Three to Five Year 371,06 430,99:
Greater Than or Equal to Five Yei 512,91¢ 555,71
Total $ 2,130,12. $ 2,438,28:

Maturities of the Company’s securitized debt anpethelent upon cash flows received from the undeglioans. The estimate of their
repayment is based on scheduled principal paynoentise underlying loans. This estimate will diffesm actual amounts to the extent
prepayments and/or loan losses are experienceelN&es 3 and 4 for a more detailed discussiohesecurities and loans collateralizing
securitized debt.

8. Consolidated Securitization Vehicles and Othevariable Interest Entities

Since its inception, the Company has created VbE$e purpose of securitizing whole mortgage laan®securitizing RMBS and obtaini
permanent, non-recourse term financing. The Compaajuated its interest in each VIE to determineiff the primary beneficiary.

Determining the primary beneficiary of a VIE reasrsignificant judgment. The Company determined fibr the securitizations it
consolidates, its ownership of substantially al@dinate interests provided the Company with thiegation to absorb losses and/or the right
to receive benefits from the VIE that could be #igant to the VIE. In addition, the Company imeidered to have the power to direct the
activities of the VIEs that most significantly ingtahe VIES’ economic performance (“power”) or tiempany was determined to have
power in connection with its involvement with therpose and design of the VIE.

As of March 31, 2013, the Company’s ConsolidatedeBhents of Financial Condition includes ten cadstéd VIEs with $4.4 billion of
assets and $2.2 billion of liabilities. As of Deadger 31, 2012, the Company’s Consolidated Statesradritinancial Condition includes ten
consolidated VIEs with $4.6 billion of assets a2ds®illion of liabilities.

The Company’s interest in the assets held by theseritization vehicles, which are consolidatedrenCompany’s Statements of Financial
Condition, is restricted by the structural provigmf these entities, and a recovery of the Comgainyestment in the vehicles will be limit

by each entity’s distribution provisions. The ligigs of the securitization vehicles, which are@atonsolidated on the Company’s Statements
of Financial Condition, are non-recourse to the @any, and can generally only be satisfied from esstiuritization vehicla respective ass
pool.

The Company is not obligated to provide, nor hgsavided, any financial support to these constdidaecuritization vehicles.
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VIEs for Which the Company is the Primary Beneficia

The retained beneficial interests in VIEs for whihle Company is the primary beneficiary are typyctide subordinated tranches of these re-
securitizations and in some cases the Company wldyiriterests in additional tranches. The restttomsolidation at March 31, 2013 is the
inclusion of $3.3 billion of Non-Agency RMBS at faialue representing the underlying securitieefttusts, the inclusion of $1.1 billion of
securitized loans held for investment, the recagmibf $1.2 billion of securitized debt associatgth Non-Agency RMBS transferred to
consolidated VIEs and $959.6 million of securitiziEbt associated with loans held for investmenaddition, at March 31, 2013 the
Company recognized $22.3 million and $7.4 millidraccrued interest receivable and accrued int@@asible, respectively, of the
securitizations.

The trusts are structured as pass through entitééseceive principal and interest on the undegydollateral and distribute those payments to
the certificate holders. The assets held by thargezation entities are restricted in that they ©nly be used to fulfill the obligations of the
securitization entity. The Company’s risks asseciavith its involvement with these VIEs are lintit® its risks and rights as a certificate
holder of the bonds it has retained. There haea Io® recent changes to the nature of risks asedaidgth the Company’s involvement with
VIEs.

The securitization entities are comprised of seciasses of RMBS and jumbo, prime, residential gage loans. See Notes 3 and 4 for a
discussion of the characteristics of the securéies loans in the Company’s portfolio.

The table below reflects the assets and liabilitse®rded in the Consolidated Statements of Fiahu@mndition related to the consolidated
VIEs as of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

March 31, December 3:
2013 2012
(dollars in thousands

Assets
Non-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated V $ 3,299,351 $ 3,274,20.
Securitized loans held for investme 1,082,31i 1,300,13:
Accrued interest receivab 22,27¢ 24,08:
Liabilities

Securitized debt, collateralized by MAgency RMBS $  1,241,29 $ 1,336,26.
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans held for

investmen 959,60: 1,169,71i
Accrued interest payab 7,38¢ 8,35¢

Income and expense and OTTIl amounts related tmtidated VIES recorded in the Consolidated StatémehOperations and
Comprehensive Income (Loss) is presented in tHe tzddow.

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
(dollars in thousands

Interest income, Assets of consolidated V $ 96,72¢ $ 98,34¢
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (26,996 (34,049
Net interest incom $ 69,73 $ 64,30(
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss $ -3 (3,38¢)
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensiceine

(loss) (135) (25,057
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss $ (135) $ (28,43)

The amounts recorded on the Consolidated Staterné@tash Flows related to consolidated VIEs is @nésd in the table below for the
periods presented.

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, March 31,

2013 2012
(dollars in thousand:
(Accretion) amortization of investment discountefpiums, ne (30,329 (32,130)
Amortization of deferred financing cos 2,11¢ 3,221
Accretion (amortization) of securitized debt disotaipremiums,
net 1,81: 8,10:
Payment of deferred financing co - (4,369

Proceeds from securitized debt borrowings, coldditezd by loans
held for investmen - 696,11:



Principal payments, NoAgency RMBS transferred to consolida

VIE's 105,55: 132,63(
Principal payments, Securitized loans held for gtreent 211,43t 21,06
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatadlby loans

held for investmen (209,43() (19,730
Payments on securitized debt borrowings, collatadlby Non-

Agency RMBS (97,45%) (129,889
Decrease (increase) in accrued interest recei 1,80¢ (2,037
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest pa (974) 1,26¢
Net cash provided by/(used in) consolidated Vv (15,467 $ 674,24:
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VIEs for Which the Company is Not the Primary Bieraafy
The Company has interests in the following VIEsddition to the RMBS described in Note 3.

The Company’s involvement with VIEs for which itrist considered the primary beneficiary generallinithe form of owning securities
issued by the trusts, similar to its investmentstirer RMBS that do not provide the Company witloatrolling financial interest. The
Company’s maximum exposure to loss does not inotiber-than-temporary impairments or other writevds that the Company previously
recognized through earnings.

The table below represents the carrying amountskssification of assets recorded on the Compamgrsolidated financial statements
related to its variable interests in non-consolda¥IEs, as well as its maximum exposure to loss @sult of its involvement with these
VIEs, which is represented by the fair value of @@mmpany’s investments in the trusts.

March 31, 201 December 31, 201
Amortized Amortized
Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value
(dollars in thousand:
Assets
Nor-Agency RMBS
Seniol $ 56 $ 69 $ 72 $ 85
Senior intere-only - 89 - 12¢
Subordinate: 284 2,05: 581 2,26¢
Agency RMBS 90¢€ 887 1,19¢ 1,001
Total $ 1,24¢ $ 3,09¢ $ 1,851 $ 3,48(

9. Interest Rate Swaps

In connection with the Company’s interest rate nsknagement strategy, the Company economicallydsedgortion of its interest rate risk
by entering into derivative financial instrumennt@cts in the form of interest rate swaps. Then@any’s swaps are used to lock in a fixed
rate related to a portion of its current and aptitéd payments on its repurchase agreements. Thedly typically agrees to pay a fixed rate
of interest (“pay rate”) in exchange for the rightreceive a floating rate of interest (“receiveefpover a specified period of time. These
derivative financial instrument contracts are negignated as hedges for GAAP. The use of inteagstswaps creates exposure to credit risk
relating to potential losses that could be recagphif the counterparties to these instrumentddaierform their obligations under the
contracts. In the event of a default by the coynatety, the Company could have difficulty obtainitgRMBS pledged as collateral for
swaps. The Company periodically monitors the ¢refdits counterparties to determine if it is expdgo counterparty credit risk. See Note 14
for further discussion of counterparty credit risk.

The table below summarizes the location and fdirevaf interest rate swaps reported in the Conatdidl Statements of Financial Conditiol
of March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

Net Estimated Fa

Value
Location on Consolidated Net Estimated Fa  of Agency RMBS
Statements Value/Carrying Pledged as
of Financial Conditior Notional Amouni Value Collateral
(dollars in thousand:
March 31, 201! Liabilities $ 1,355,000 $ (48,53) $ 54,24¢
December 31, 201 Liabilities $ 1,355,000 $ (53,939 $ 60,38:

The effect of the Company’s interest rate swaptherConsolidated Statements of Operations and Gemepsive Income (Loss) is presented
below.

Location on Consolidated Statements of
Operations and
Comprehensive Income (Los
Net Unrealized Net Realized Gains

Gains (Losses) (Losses)
on Interest Rate on Interest Rate
Swaps Swaps

(dollars in thousand:
For the Quarter Ende
March 31, 201! $ 540z $ (5,530
March 31, 201. $ 8lz & (4,39¢)

The weighted average pay rate on the Com's interest rate swaps at March 31, 2013 was 1.8id4he&e weighted average receive rate



0.20%. The weighted average pay rate on the Coygparierest rate swaps at December 31, 2012 w&i9d and the weighted average
receive rate was 0.21%.
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The following table summarizes the notional amowamd unrealized gains (losses) of interest ratgawwatracts on a gross basis, amounts
offset in accordance with netting arrangementsraichmounts as presented in the Consolidated Stateraf Financial Condition as of
March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012.

March 31, 201:
(dollars in thousand:

Interest Rate Swaps -

Interest Rate Swa|- Asset Liability
Unrealized Unrealized
Notional Gains Notional Losses
Gross Amount: $ -3 - $ 1,355,000 $ 48,53"
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amountt $ - $ - $ 135500 $ 48,53;
December 31, 201
(dollars in thousand:
Interest Rate Swaps -
Interest Rate Swa|- Asset Liability
Unrealized Unrealized
Notional Gains Notional Losses
Gross Amount: $ -3 - $ 1,355,000 $ 53,93¢
Amounts Offset - - - -
Netted Amountt $ - $ - $ 1,355,000 $ 53,93¢

All of the Company’s derivative contracts are sabje International Swaps and Derivatives AssosiaiMaster Agreements (“ISDA”) which
contain provisions that grant counterparties centigihts with respect to the applicable ISDA uplea dccurrence of (i) negative performance
that results in a decline in net assets in excespeazified thresholds or dollar amounts over setqals of time, (ii) the Company’s failure to
maintain its REIT status, (iii) the Company’s fadito comply with limits on the amount of leveragad (iv) the Company’s stock being
delisted from the New York Stock Exchange (NYSEpod the occurrence of items (i) through (iv), toemterparty to the applicable ISDA
has a right to terminate the ISDA in accordancé i provisions. The aggregate fair value of alligative instruments with credit-risk-
related contingent features that are in a netlifglposition at March 31, 2013 is approximately8$! million including accrued interest, wh
represents the maximum amount the Company woutddpgred to pay upon termination, which is fullylateralized.

10. Common Stock

On January 28, 2011 the Company entered into aityetjstribution agreement with FIDAC and UBS Satias LLC (“UBS”). Through this
agreement, the Company may sell through UBS, asles agent, up to 125,000,000 shares of its canstozk in ordinary brokers’
transactions at market prices or other transactisreggreed between the Company and UBS. The Conadinot sell any shares of its
common stock under the equity distribution agredrdening the quarters ended March 31, 2013 and .2@&2a result of the Company’s
delay in filing its SEC reports by the filing datquired by the SEC (including the grace periodrged by Rule 12b-25 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), the Companynailbe able to issue shares of its common stodkmithe equity distribution agreement
until filings with the SEC have been timely made ddull year.

On September 24, 2009, the Company implementedidddid Reinvestment and Share Purchase Plan (‘DRSFRe DRSPP provides
holders of record of its common stock an opportutatautomatically reinvest all or a portion of theash distributions received on common
stock in additional shares of the Company’s comstook as well as to make optional cash paymergsitthase shares of its common stock.
Persons who are not already stockholders may alsthase the Company’s common stock under the plaagh optional cash

payments. The DRSPP is administered by the Adinéitg, Computershare. The DRSPP was suspendeawydhe quarter ended March 31,
2012 when the Company was no longer current ffilitgs with the SEC. There were no shares issaaged part of the DRSPP during the
quarter ended March 31, 2013 due to the suspensitie DRSPP. During the quarter ended March 8122he Company raised $117
thousand by issuing 39,000 shares through the DRS®$a result of the Company’s delay in filing 8EC reports by the filing date required
by the SEC (including the grace period permittedRioye 12b-25 under the Securities Exchange AcB8#1as amended), the Company will
not be able to issue shares under the DRSPP ilintjisf with the SEC have been timely made for &yahr.

During the Quarter ended March 31, 2013 the Compiaciared dividends to common shareholders tot&i#®y4 million, or $0.09 per

share. During the Quarter ended March 31, 201Ztrapany declared dividends to common sharehotdeabng $112.9 million, or $0.11
per share.
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Earnings per share for the quarters ended MarcB@®IL3 and 2012, respectively, are computed aswsllo

For the Quarter Ende
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
(dollars in thousands

Numerator:

Net income $ 79,80 $ 80,23:
Effect of dilutive securities: - -
Dilutive net income available to stockholders $ 79,80 $ 80,23:

Denominator

Weighted average basic sha 1,027,009,51 1,026,762,09
Effect of dilutive securities 586,00( 727,49:
Weighted average diluted shares 1,027,595,51 1,027,489,58
Net income per average share attributable to cam

stockholders - Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢
Net income per average share attributable to cam

stockholders - Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 0.0¢

11. Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the changes in thegmrants of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Incd®@ClI”) for the quarter ended
March 31, 2013:

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Unrealized gains

(losses) on
available-for-sale  Total Accumulated
securities, ne OCI Balance
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ 989,93t $ 989,93
OCI before reclassificatior 117,59 117,59
Amounts reclassified from AOCI 6,157 6,157
Net current period OC 123,75: 123,75:
Balance as of March 31, 2013 $ 1,113,68 $ 1,113,68

The following table presents the details of thdassifications from AOCI for the quarter ended Magd, 2013:

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Amounts
Reclassified Affected Line on the
from Consolidated Statements Of
Accumulated Operations And Comprehensive
Details about Accumulated OCI Compone OClI Income (Loss
Unrealized gains and losses on avail-for-sale securitie
$ 6 Net realized gains (losses) on sales of investn
(6,169 Net othe-than-temporary credit impairment losses

$ (6,157 Income (loss) before income tax
- Income taxes

$ (6,157 Net of tax

12. Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has adopted a long term stock inceptargeto provide incentives to its independentcatoes and employees of FIDAC and its
affiliates, to reward their efforts, to attractyad and retain personnel and other service prosj@dad to align their interest with the common
share investors. The incentive plan authorizeCibmpensation Committee of the board of directorgrant awards, including incentive st
options, nongualified stock options, restricted shares andraijyyees of incentive awards. The specific awahtgd to an individual is bas
upon, in part, the individu's position within FIDAC, the individu’s position within the Company, his or her contribntto the Compar’'s



performance, as well as the recommendations of EIDAhe incentive plan authorizes the grantingpifams or other awards of 8.0% of the
outstanding shares of the Company’s common stodhk apceiling of 40,000,000 shares.
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On January 2, 2008, the Company granted restrgttedk awards in the amount of 1,301,000 sharemfuiaeyees of FIDAC and its affiliates
and the Company’s independent directors. The amarthe independent directors vested on the dajeaat and the awards to FIDAC'’s
employees vest quarterly over a period of 10 yeBxsing the quarter ended March 31, 2013, 27,0@0es have vested and 2,000 shares
were forfeited. As of March 31, 2013 there wa®3$8illion of total unrecognized compensation costated to non-vested share-based
compensation arrangements granted under the lomgineentive plan, based on the closing price efghares on the grant date. As of Mz
31, 2013 there was $1.8 million of total unrecogdizompensation costs related to non-vested sleeedlzompensation arrangements
granted under the long term incentive plan, basetthe closing price of the shares at quarter &rtht cost is expected to be recognized over
a period of 4.8 years. The total fair value of slsarested, less those forfeited, during the quaeeded March 31, 2013 and 2012 was $73
thousand and $81 thousand, respectively, baseldeoridsing price of the stock on the vesting dé&ter the quarters ended March 31, 2013
and 2012, compensation expense associated witmibetization of the fair value of the restrictedcst was approximately $78 thousand and
$82 thousand, respectively.

The Company’s independent directors receive a fdathr amount of the Company’s common stock innmefor services provided to the
Company. Equity based awards granted to the inkgre directors vest during the year of servicer the quarters ended March 31, 2013
and 2012, the Company recognized $75 thousandygetey of stock based compensation to independesutdrs.

The following table presents information with resp the Company restricted stock awards during the quarters eivtidh 31, 2013 ar
2012:

For the Quarter Ende

March 31, 201! March 31, 201:
Weighted
Weighted Average
Number of Average Grant  Number of Grant Date
Shares Date Fair Valu Shares Fair Value
Unvested shares outstanding - beginr
of period 586,00( 17.72 758,401 17.72
Grantec - - - -
Vested (27,33 17.72 (31,42) 17.72
Forfeited (1,965 17.72 (179 17.72
Unvested shares outstanding - end of
period 556,70( 17.72 726,80( 17.72

13. Income Taxes

For the quarter ended March 31, 2013, the Compasyqualified to be taxed as a REIT under Code &ec856 through 860. As a REIT,
the Company is not subject to federal income tathéoextent that it makes qualifying distributiarfdaxable income to its stockholders. To
maintain qualification as a REIT, the Company ndistribute at least 90% of its annual REIT taxab®me to its shareholders and meet
certain other requirements such as assets it mldyihoome it may generate and its shareholder asitipn. It is generally the Company’s
policy to distribute to its shareholders all of thempany’s taxable income.

The state and local tax jurisdictions for which @@mpany is subject to tax-filing obligations renag the Company’s status as a REIT, and
therefore, the Company generally does not pay igctax in such jurisdictions. The Company may, havebe subject to certain minimum
state and local tax filing fees and its TRS is sabjo federal, state, and local taxes.

For each of the quarters ended March 31, 2013 @hd,2he Company recorded income tax expense tfc&sand.

In general, common stock cash dividends declarethdCompany will be considered ordinary incomsttazkholders for income tax
purposes. From time to time, a portion of the Canys dividends may be characterized as capitalsgai return of capital.

The Company'’s effective tax rate differs from isnbined federal, state and city corporate statusxyate primarily due to the deduction of
dividend distributions required to be paid unded€&ection 857(a).
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The Company’s 2012, 2011 and 2010 federal, statdamal tax returns remain open for examination.
14. Credit Risk and Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s primary components of market riskcaeglit risk and interest rate risk. The Compangubject to interest rate risk in
connection with its investments in Agency and NageAcy RMBS, residential mortgage loans, and bomgw/under repurchase
agreements. When the Company assumes interesisigti attempts to minimize interest rate riekaugh asset selection, hedging and
matching the income earned on mortgage assetgheitbost of related liabilities. The Company atsrto minimize credit risk through due
diligence and asset selection by purchasing loadsmwvritten to agreed-upon specifications of seléairiginators. The Company has
established a whole loan target market includingi@hborrowers with FICO scores generally greatanté50, Alt-A documentation,
geographic diversification, owner-occupied propesatyd moderate loan-to-value ratios. These faci@onsidered to be important
indicators of credit risk.

By using derivative hedging instruments and repasetagreements, the Company is exposed to courtjecpadit risk if counterparties to t
contracts do not perform as expected. If a countgrgails to perform on a derivative hedging instient, the Company’s counterparty credit
risk is equal to the amount reported as a derigaset on its balance sheet to the extent thairgregceeds collateral obtained from the
counterparty or, if in a net liability position,afextent to which collateral posted exceeds thmlilia to the counterparty. The amounts repo

as a derivative asset/(liability) are derivativenracts in a gain/(loss) position, and to the eixéebject to master netting arrangements, net of
derivatives in a loss/(gain) position with the satbanterparty and collateral received/(pledgedhéf counterparty fails to perform on a
repurchase agreement, the Company is exposeass &0 the extent that the fair value of collatptatiged exceeds the liability to the
counterparty. The Company attempts to minimizentenparty credit risk by evaluating and monitorthg counterparty’s credit, executing
master netting arrangements and obtaining collatend executing contracts and agreements withiphelitounterparties to reduce exposure
to a single counterparty, where appropriate.

Our repurchase agreements and derivative transadci®@ governed by underlying agreements that geedair a right of setoff under master
netting arrangements, including in the event oadkfor in the event of bankruptcy of either pddyhe transactions. We present our assets
and liabilities subject to such arrangements oataasis in our consolidated statements of findicoiadition. The following table presents
information about our liabilities that are subjezsuch arrangements and can potentially be affsetur consolidated statements of financial
condition as of March 31, 2013 and December 31220he Company has no financial instruments sailhjemaster netting arrangements, or
similar arrangements, in an asset position on asgasis.

March 31, 201
(dollars in thousands
Gross Amounts Not Offset with
Financial
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidated
Statements of Financial Positi
Gross Amounts

Offset Net Amounts
Gross Amounts in the Offset in
of Recognized Consolidated the Consolidated Cash Collateral
Assets Statements of Statements of Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Financial Positiol  Financial Positiol Instruments Pledgec Net Amount

Repurchase
agreement $ (1,420,37) $ - $ (1,420,37) $ 1,491,558 $ - $ 71,20¢
Derivatives $ (48,537 - (48,53) $ 54,24¢ - 5,712
Total Liabilities $ (1,468,91) $ ) (1,468,91) $ 154583, $ ) 76,92(

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands
Gross Amounts Not Offset wit
Financial
Assets (Liabilities) in the Consolidate
Statements of Financial Positi
Gross Amounts

Offset Net Amounts
Gross Amount: in the Offset in
of Recognized Consolidated the Consolidatec Cash Collateral
Assets Statements of Statements of Financial (Received)
(Liabilities) Financial Positiol  Financial Positiol Instruments Pledgec Net Amount

Repurchase
agreement $ (1,528,02) $ - $ (1,528,02) $ 1,604,561 $ - $ 76,53t
Derivatives $ (53,939 - (53,939 $ 60,38: - 6,44%
Total Liabilities $ (1,581,96) $ - % (1,581,96) $ 1,664,94. $ - % 82,97¢
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15. Management Agreement and Related Party Transéons

The Company entered into a management agreemdnEWAC, which provided for an initial term througrecember 31, 2010 with an
automatic one-year extension option and subjecettain termination rights. The Compensation Cottamiof the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decermp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, the Company paid FIRAquarterly management fee
equal to 1.50% per annum of the gross Stockholdagaity (as defined in the management agreemerijeo€ompany. Effective November
28, 2012, the management fee was reduced to 0.86%npum of gross Stockholders’ Equity, which reiduncwill remain in effect until the
Company is current on all of its filings requirender applicable securities laws.

Management fees accrued and paid to FIDAC for tteatgrs ended March 31, 2013 and 2012 were $6ldménd $12.9 million
respectively.

Under the management agreement, the Company gatddi to reimburse FIDAC for its costs incurredemitie management agreement. In
addition, the management agreement permits FIDA@daire the Company to pay for its pro rata portdrent, telephone, utilities, office
furniture, equipment, machinery and other officegeinal and overhead expenses that FIDAC incurredmnnection with the Company’s
operations. These expenses are allocated betwB&CFand the Company based on the ratio of the Gomis proportion of gross assets
compared to the gross assets managed by FIDAG@datad at each quarter end. FIDAC and the Coyppath modify this allocation
methodology, subject to the approval of the Comjsabgard of directors if the allocation becomegjimtable (i.e., if the Company becomes
very highly leveraged compared to FIDAC's otherdarand accounts). During the quarter ended Mat¢c@13, the Company reimbursed
FIDAC approximately $99 thousand for such expenBesing the quarter ended March 31, 2012, the Campaimbursed FIDAC
approximately $115 thousand for such expenses.

The Company and FIDAC amended the management agre@m March 8, 2013. In the amendment, the résluat the management fee
was memorialized. In addition, FIDAC agreed ty pH past and future expenses that the Companipatite Audit Committee of the
Company incur to: (1) evaluate the Company’s actingmpolicy related to the application of GAAP te Non-Agency RMBS portfolio (the
“Evaluation”); (2) restate the Company’s finangtdtements for the period covering 2008 throughl2dla result of the Evaluation (the
“Restatement Filing”)and (3) investigate and evaluate any shareholderadi’e demands arising from the Evaluation andtierRestateme
Filing (the “Investigation”); provided, however,ahFIDAC'’s obligation to pay expenses applies dolgxpenses not paid by the Company’s
insurers under its insurance policies. Expensal isiclude, without limitation, fees and costsun@d with respect to auditors, outside
counsel, and consultants engaged by the Compargrahd Audit Committee of the Company for the Enaion, Restatement Filing and the
Investigation. The amount paid by FIDAC relatedhese expenses for the quarter ended March 33B,i2(1.9 million, and is presented in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Gamepsive Income (Loss) as Expense recoveries framalyker. There were no amounts
paid by FIDAC related to these expenses for thetquanded March 31, 2012.

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 déige it any time in their sole discreti
without the payment of a termination fee. The agime@nt also provides that the Company may termithetenanagement agreement effec
immediately if (i) FIDAC engages in any act of fcaumisappropriation of funds, or embezzlement agahre Company, (ii) there is an event
of any gross negligence on the part of FIDAC inpgkeeformance of its duties under the managemeeeagent, (iii) there is a commencement
of any proceeding relating to FIDAC’s bankruptcyirsolvency, (iv) there is a dissolution of FIDA@, (v) FIDAC is convicted of (including

a plea of nolo contendere) a felony.

On March 1, 2011, the Company entered into an adtrative services agreement with RCap Securities (“RCap”). RCap is a SEC-
registered broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsjddf Annaly that clears the Company’s securitiades in return for normal and
customary fees that RCap charges for such servR€=map may also provide brokerage services to tragany from time to time. During tl
quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, fees p&CAP were $34 thousand $44 thousand, respectively

During the quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 289,300 shares and 31,600 shares of restricted ssw&d by the Company to FIDAC's
employees vested, respectively.
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16. Commitments and Contingencies

From time to time, the Company may become invoinedhrious claims and legal actions arising indhdinary course of business. In
connection with certain re-securitization transatsi engaged in by the Company, the Company hazbtfgation under certain circumstances
to repurchase assets from the VIE upon breachrtdingepresentations and warranties. Managersenttiaware of any contingencies that
require accrual or disclosure as of March 31, 281@ December 31, 2012.

17. Subsequent Events
The Board of Directors declared and paid commockstash dividends of $0.09 per common share fosémend, third and fourth quarters of
2013. The Board of Directors has also determinatittrere will be a regular quarterly dividend of@per share for each of the first two

quarters of 2014. The Board of Directors also deda special dividend of $0.20 per share paidamudry 31, 2014 to shareholders of record
on January 8, 2014. The special dividend may laeacherized as a return of capital for federal medax purposes.
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ltem 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financi&ondition and Results of Operations

The following discussion of the Company’s (“we”“our”) financial condition and results of operations skdug read in conjunction with t
consolidated financial statements and notes teetbtaements included in Item 1 of this quartegfyart on Form 10-Q.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

We make forward-looking statements in this reploat are subject to risks and uncertainties. Thexseafrd-looking statements include
information about possible or assumed future resaflbur business, financial condition, liquiditgsults of operations, plans and objectives.
When we use the words “believe,” “expect,” “dicipate,” “estimate,” “plan,” “continue,” * ‘intend,” “should,” “may,” “would,”

“will” or similar expressions, we intend to ideft forward-looking statements. Statements regagdhe following subjects, among others,
are forward-looking by their nature:

e our business and investment strate

e our ability to maintain existing financing arrangemts, obtain future financing arrangements andtéhms of such arrangemei
particularly in light of the delay of this filingna other matters discussed in this Forr-Q;

e our ability to timely file our periodic reports Withe Securities and Exchange Commission, or ¢
e  our expectations regarding materiality or significe;

e the effectiveness of our disclosure controls amat@dures

e  material weaknesses in our internal controls owemfcial reporting

e additional information that may arise from the @egiion of our financial statemen

e inadequacy of or weakness in our internal contosksr financial reporting of which we are not cuthgraware or which have n
been detectec

e general volatility of the securities markets in ethive invest

e the impact of and changes to various governmergrpros;

e  our expected investmen

e changes in the value of our investme

e interest rate mismatches between our investmewt®anborrowings used to finance such purche
e changes in interest rates and mortgage prepayaeEs;

e effects of interest rate caps on our adjus-rate investments

e rates of default, delinquencies or decreased regaaées on our investmen

e prepayments of the mortgage and other loans lymggrour mortgage-backed securities, or RMBS, thieo assebacked securitie
or ABS;

e the degree to which our hedging strategies mayay mot protect us from interest rate volatili

e the potential delisting of our common stock frora thew York Stock Exchange, or NYS
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e impact of and changes in governmental regulatitanslaw and rates, accounting guidance, and simikgters;

e availability of investment opportunities in reatas-related and other securitie

e availability of qualified personne

e  estimates relating to our ability to make distribos to our stockholders in the futu

e our understanding of our competitic

e market trends in our industry, interest ratesdilet securities markets or the general econc

e our ability to maintain our classification as alrestate investment trust, or REIT, for federabime tax purposes; al

e  our ability to maintain our exemption from regisima under the Investment Company Act of 1940,raeraded, or 1940 Ac

The forward-looking statements are based on ouefsehssumptions and expectations of our futureopmance, taking into account all
information currently available to us. You shoultt place undue reliance on these forwkmaking statements. These beliefs, assumption:
expectations can change as a result of many pessieints or factors, not all of which are knownigoSome of these factors are described
under the caption “Risk Factors” in our most raté&nnual Report on Form 10-K and any subsequemirt@rly Reports on Form 10-Q. If a
change occurs, our business, financial conditigajdity and results of operations may vary matiriom those expressed in our forward-
looking statements. Any forward-looking statemeyeaks only as of the date on which it is made. Nsks and uncertainties arise from time
to time, and it is impossible for us to predictsb@vents or how they may affect us. Except adnegtjby law, we are not obligated to, and do
not intend to, update or revise any forward-lookstatements, whether as a result of new informafigare events or otherwise.

Unless otherwise indicated herein or as may beiredjby law (including, without limitation, to reftt the effects of the restatement of our
financial statements), the disclosure includedis Form 10-Q is presented as of March 31, 20180Adingly, this Form 10-Q does not
reflect all events occurring after March 31, 20&8cept as required by law, or as required by ASE; 8bibsequent Events), and we have not
undertaken to update any item included in this Fd@Q to reflect such events.

Executive Summary

We are a Maryland corporation that commenced ojpeisabn November 21, 2007. We acquire, eitherctirer indirectly through our
subsidiaries, residential mortgage-backed secsritieRMBS, residential mortgage loans, commero@ltgage loans, real estate related
securities and various other asset classes. Wextamally managed by Fixed Income Discount Adwisdompany, which we refer to as
FIDAC or our Manager. FIDAC is a fixed-income istenent management company that is registered ewastment adviser with the

SEC. FIDAC is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ann&lgpital Management, Inc., or Annaly. FIDAC hageaadld range of experience in
managing investments in Agency RMBS, which are gage pass-through certificates, collateralized gaagr¢ obligations, or CMOs, and
other RMBS representing interests in or obligatibasked by pools of mortgage loans issued or gteedrby Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, and
Ginnie Mae, Non-Agency RMBS, collateralized debligdtions, or CDOs, and other real estate relatgdstments.

Our objective is to provide attractive risk-adjubteturns to our investors over the long-term, jrifg through dividends and secondarily
through capital appreciation. We intend to achig objective by investing in a diversified intleent portfolio of RMBS, residential
mortgage loans, real estate-related securitievaridus other asset classes, subject to maintacundrREIT status and exemption from
registration under the 1940 Act. The RMBS, ABS, B3/ and CDOs we purchase may include investmertegaad non-investment grade
classes, including the BB-rated, B-rated and noedralasses.
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We rely on our Manager’s expertise in identifyirgg@ts within our target asset classes. Our Mamagkes investment decisions based on
various factors, including expected cash yieldatre¢ value, risk-adjusted returns, current anggeted credit fundamentals, current and
projected macroeconomic considerations, currentpaogcted supply and demand, credit and markietcosicentration limits, liquidity, cost
of financing and financing availability, as well asintaining our REIT qualification and our exeroptifrom registration under the 1940 Act.

Over time, we will modify our investment allocatistrategy as market conditions change to seek sonmiee the returns from our investment
portfolio. We believe this strategy, combined wothr Manager’s experience, will enable us to paydéinds and achieve capital appreciation
through various changing interest rate and credites and provide attractive long-term returnateestors.

Our targeted asset classes and the principal imezgs we have made and in which we may in the dunwrest are:

Asset Class Principal Investments

RMBS °

Residential Mortgage Loans °

Non-Agency RMBS, including investment-grade and norestment grade classes, including
the BE-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

Agency RMBS
Interes-only (“10”) RMBS

Prime mortgage loans, which are mortgage loansctiveorm to the underwriting guidelines of
Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac, which we refer to asnyg Guidelines; and jumbo prime
mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans that confo the Agency Guidelines except as to
loan size

Alt-A mortgage loans, which are mortgage loans thay have been originated using
documentation standards that are less stringentthieadocumentation standards applied by
certain other first lien mortgage loan purchasegmms, such as the Agency Guidelines, but
have one or more compensating factors such asravibrwith a strong credit or mortgage
history or significant asse

FHA/VA insured loans, which are mortgage loans twahply with the underwriting guidelin
of the Federal Housing Administration (FHA) or Depsent of Veteran Affairs (VA) and
which are guaranteed by the FHA or VA, respecti

Mortgage servicing rights associated with residgmtiortgage loans, which reflect the value of
the future stream of expected cash flows from th#ractual rights to service a given pool of
residential mortgage loar
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Commercial Mortgage Loans e First or second lien loans secured by multifamilggerties, which are residential rental
properties consisting of five or more dwelling sniand mixed residential or other commercial
properties; retail properties; office propertiesjrmustrial properties, which may or may not
conform to the Agency Guidelini

Other Asse-Backed Securitie e CMBS
e Debt and equity tranches of CD!

e Consumer and non-consumer ABS, including investrgesdie and non-investment grade
classes, including the E-rated, E-rated and nc-rated classe

Hedging Instrument e Swaps
e Swaptions
e Futures
e Index options
e Mortgage options

Since we commenced operations in November 200 hawve focused our investment activities on acquiNieg-Agency and Agency RMBS
and on purchasing residential mortgage loans tiat been originated by select originators, inclgdhe retail lending operations of leading
commercial banks. Our investment portfolio at Medd, 2013 was weighted toward Non-Agency RMBSt March 31, 2013, based on the
outstanding principal balance of our interest eggrassets, approximately 76.4% of our investmertfgm was Non-Agency RMBS, 14.2%
of our investment portfolio was Agency RMBS, and%.of our investment portfolio was securitized desitial mortgage loans. At
December 31, 2012, based on the outstanding pahleglance of our interest earning assets, app teiyn74.6% of our investment portfolio
was Non-Agency RMBS, 14.7% of our investment pdidfavas Agency RMBS, and 10.7% of our investmentfptio was securitized
residential mortgage loans. We expect that oventhar term, our investment portfolio will continieebe weighted toward Non-Agency
RMBS, subject to maintaining our REIT qualificatiand our 1940 Act exemption.

We have engaged in transactions with residentiatgage lending operations of leading commerciakband other originators in which we
identified and re-underwrote residential mortgaggk owned by such entities, and purchased andtsasalisuch residential mortgage
loans. In the past we have also acquired form&fp-rated Non-Agency RMBS and immediately re-setimed those securities. We sold
the resulting AAA-rated super senior RMBS and regdithe rated or unrated mezzanine RMBS.

Our investment strategy is intended to take adggntd opportunities in the current interest raté aredit environment. We expect to adjust
our strategy to changing market conditions by Bigfour asset allocations across these various elssses as interest rate and credit cycles
change over time. We believe that our strategymhined with FIDAC'’s experience, will enable us typlividends and achieve capital
appreciation throughout changing market cycles. elfiect to take a long-term view of assets andliligls, and our reported earnings and
estimates of the fair value of our investment$atdnd of a financial reporting period will notrsigcantly impact our objective of providing
attractive risk-adjusted returns to our stockhdadmrer the long-term.

We use leverage to seek to increase our potertialns and to finance the acquisition of our ass@isr income is generated primarily by the
difference, or net spread, between the income we@aour assets and the cost of our borrowings. epect to finance our investments
using a variety of financing sources including, wia&ailable, repurchase agreements, warehousdiéscidnd securitizations. We may
manage our debt and interest rate risk by utilizimgrest rate hedges, such as interest rate swaps, options and futures to reduce the effect
of interest rate fluctuations related to our finagcsources.
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We have elected and believe we are organized areldigerated in a manner that qualifies us to bedas a REIT under the Code. A REIT
generally will not be subject to federal income taxtaxable income that is distributed to stockedd Furthermore, substantially all of our
assets consist of qualified REIT real estate ageéthe type described in Code Section 856(c)(5Ye calculate that at least 75% of our a:
were qualified REIT assets, as defined in the Ctmtehe quarter ended March 31, 2013 and the geded December 31, 2012. We also
calculate that our revenues qualified for the 758TRncome test and for the 95% REIT income testlie quarter ended March 31, 2013
and the year ended December 31, 2012. We alsalrREIT requirements regarding the ownership af@mmon stock and the distribution
of our REIT taxable income. Therefore, for the ieraended March 31, 2013 and the year ended Dezredih 2012, we believe that we
qualified as a REIT under the Code.

We operate our business to be exempt from regmtrander the 1940 Act, and therefore we are reguio invest a substantial majority of
our assets in loans secured by mortgages on rtaa esd real estate-related assets. Subjectitaaiming our REIT qualification and our
1940 Act exemption, we do not have any limitationghe amounts we may invest in any of our targateset classes.

Looking forward, we cannot predict the percentaigeun assets that will be invested in each assessabr whether we will invest in other
classes of investments. We may change our investsteategy and policies without a vote of our ktadders.

Trends

We expect the results of our operations to be &fteby various factors, many of which are beyondamntrol. Our results of operations will
primarily depend on, among other things, the I®felur net interest income, the market value ofassgets, and the supply of and demand for
such assets. Economic trends, both macro as svtlose directly affecting the residential housimayket, and the supply and demand of
RMBS may affect our operations and financial resuliVe also evaluate market information regardimgent residential mortgage loan
underwriting criteria and loan defaults to managepmwrtfolio of assets, leverage, and debt.
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Our net interest income, which reflects the amatiin of purchase premiums and accretion of distsowaries primarily as a result of
changes in interest rates, borrowing costs, chegiairment losses, and prepayment speeds, whilmisasurement of how quickly borrowers
pay down the unpaid principal balance on their gage loans. Further description of these fac®pavided below.

Prepayment Speec Prepayment speeds, as reflected by the Constapéayiment Rate, or CPR, vary according to inteagss, the type of
investment, conditions in financial markets, angeotfactors, none of which can be predicted with @artainty. In general, when interest
rates rise, it is relatively less attractive fortoavers to refinance their mortgage loans, and@sat, prepayment speeds tend to

decrease. When interest rates fall, prepaymemetdspiend to increase. For mortgage loan and RMB&stments purchased at a premium, as
prepayment speeds increase, the amount of inconeamedecreases as the purchase premium on the horudtizes faster than

expected. Conversely, decreases in prepaymendspesult in increased income and can extend ttiecpever which we amortize the
purchase premium.

For mortgage loan and RMBS investments purchasadlacount, as prepayment speeds increase, thenamidincome we earn increases
from the acceleration of the accretion of the digdanto interest income. Conversely, decreas@gsdpayment speeds result in decreased
income as the accretion of the purchase discotminterest income occurs over a longer periodceRdy, the correlation between interest
rates and prepayment has not followed normal trémdsertain asset classes. Due to economic higrdstime borrowers have been unable to
refinance their loans as underwriting standardsraree stringent and credit conditions remain regue.

Rising Interest Rate Environme As indicated above, as interest rates rise, prapat speeds generally decrease. Rising inteatest,r
however, increase our financing costs which mayltés a net negative impact on our net interesbme. In addition, if we acquire Agency
and Non-Agency RMBS collateralized by monthly resgjustable-rate mortgages, or ARMs, and threefigaeyear hybrid ARMs, such
interest rate increases could result in decrea&sesrinet investment income, as the increase iradjustable rate assets may increase slower
than our adjustable rate financing. We expectdhbatixed-rate assets would decline in value iisgng interest rate environment and that our
net interest spreads on fixed rate assets coulthden a rising interest rate environment to tlgeat such assets are financed with floating
rate debt.

Credit Risk. One of our strategic focuses is on acquiringessted Non-Agency RMBS that have been downgradealise of defaults in the
mortgages collateralizing such RMBS. When we aegsiich RMBS we attempt to purchase it at a prch ¢hat its loss-adjusted return
profile is in line with our targeted yields. Weain the risk of potential credit losses on altleg residential mortgage loans we hold in our
portfolio as well as all of the Non-Agency RMBS. eVdttempt to mitigate credit risk in the assetct&la process. Prior to the purchase of
investments, we conduct a credit-risk based arsbfsihe collateral securing our investment thalides examining borrower characteristics,
geographic concentrations, current and projectéidglesncies, current and projected severities,atdal and expected prepayment speeds
among other characteristics to estimate expects{ We also acquire assets which we believe ob thigh credit quality.

Size of Investment PortfolioThe size of our investment portfolio, as meastogthe aggregate unpaid principal balance of cortgage
loans and aggregate principal balance of our mgegalated securities and the other assets weiswaiso a key revenue driver. Generally,
as the size of our investment portfolio grows,dh®unt of interest income we receive increase® ldilger investment portfolio, however,
may result in increased expenses if we incur aufthi interest expense to finance the purchasercdssets.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our financial statements in accordaritteagcounting principles generally accepted inlimted States, or GAAP, which
requires the use of estimates and assumptions. déamnt has discussed and reviewed the developssettion, and disclosure of critical
accounting estimates with the Company’s Audit Cotteai Management believes that the most criticabating policies and estimates,
since these estimates require significant judgnaeetjnterest income and other-than-temporary impexit, or OTTI, on NorAgency RMBS
the determination of the appropriate accounting ehéar Non-Agency RMBS, the impact of default andgmayment assumptions on RMBS,
and fair value measurements. Financial resultsdcoelmaterially different if other methodologiesreveised or if management modified its
assumptions.

40




For a discussion of the Company’s critical accoumnpolicies and estimates, see “Critical Accounfudicies and Estimates” in Part Il, Iltem
7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finah€ondition and Results of Operations” includedhi@ Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Refer to Note 2(q) in the Notes to ConsolidatedhRimal Statements for a discussion of accountindamee recently adopted by the
Company.

Financial Condition
Estimated Economic Book Value

This Management Discussion and Analysis sectiotiatas analysis and discussion of financial infoliorathat utilizes or presents ratios
based on GAAP book value. The table and discussttow present our estimated economic book valife.calculate and disclose this non-
GAAP measurement because we believe it represarstamate of the fair value of the assets we omar® able to dispose of, pledge, or
otherwise monetize. The estimated economic bobalevshould not be viewed in isolation and is neubstitute for book value computed in
accordance with GAAP.

GAAP requires us to consolidate certain securitmatand re-securitization transactions where we lietermined that we are the primary
beneficiary. In these transactions, we transfeaesibts to the trusts, which issued tranches @frsand subordinate notes or certificates. We
sold the senior tranches and therefore have naneomg involvement in these trusts other than beirglder of notes or certificates issued by
the trusts, with the same rights as other holdetiseonotes or certificates, except as it reladeeS$MC 2012-CIM1, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and
CSMC 2012-CIM3. As it relates solely to CSMC 201AC, CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM3, we have #indity to approve loan
modifications and determine the course of actiobgdaken as it relates to loans in technical dgfencluding whether or not to proceed with
foreclosure. The notes and certificates we owhwlesie issued by the trusts are largely subordihatierests in those trusts. The trusts have
no recourse to our assets other than pursuanteaah by us of the transaction documents relatéuettransfer of the assets by us to the
trusts, but are presented as if we own 100% ofrtie.

For re-securitized RMBS transactions and loan sézations, we present the pre-securitized asseisterred into the consolidated trusts in
our Consolidated Statements of Financial CondiisiNon-Agency RMBS transferred to consolidated \WESecuritized loans held for
investment. Post securitization RMBS assets s@lgheesented as liabilities in our Consolidatede®t@nts of Financial Condition as
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-Agency RM&B1I Securitized debt, collateralized by loans feddnvestment. We have presented
the underlying securities we transferred to thettrfior the calculation of GAAP book value at faatue and recorded the corresponding
liability for the notes or certificates sold toridhiparties at amortized cost. Fair value adjustmtrat are not credit related are recorded in
Other comprehensive income (loss). Credit relatgubirments are deemed other-than-temporary angepeded in earnings.

Because we are unable to dispose of, monetizeedgplthe RMBS or loans we transferred into thegruge also present our estimated
economic book value. We believe this measure sepits the estimated value of the securities isbydhese trusts that we own. In contrast
to GAAP book value, our estimated economic booki@aonsiders only the assets we own or are allispose of, pledge, or otherwise
monetize. To determine our estimated economic lvatike, we consider only the fair value of the saiecertificates issued by the
securitization and re-securitization trusts thatagially own. Accordingly, our estimated econotmiok value does not include assets or
liabilities for which we have no direct ownershgpecifically the notes or certificates of the sé@ation and re-securitization trusts that were
sold to third parties.

At March 31, 2013 the difference between GAAP bwakie and estimated economic book value was datedrto be $477.6 million. At
December 31, 2012 the difference between GAAP badke and estimated economic book value was detedrtd be $416.1 million. This
difference is primarily driven by the value of tR®BS assets we have retained in thesga@iritization transactions as compared to thea
of consolidated loans and securities net of RMBstsssold and recorded at amortized cost in thaesdctions. In these re-securitization
transactions, we retained the subordinated, tylgicain-rated, first loss notes or certificates issuedhgydecuritization trusts. These secur
are complex, typically locked out as to principgbayment, relatively illiquid, and do not necedgaappreciate or depreciate in tandem with
the broader Nogency RMBS market or with the loans on securitiemed by the trusts. The tables below presenadiigsstments to GAA
book value that we believe are necessary to adelguaflect our calculation of estimated econoniokvalue as of March 31, 2013 and
December 31, 2012.
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March 31, 201«
(dollars in thousands, except per share

data)
GAAP Estimated
Book Economic
Value  Adjustment: Book Value
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior $ 69 $ -8 69
Senior intere-only 120,05: - 120,05:
Subordinate: 585,34( - 585,34(
Subordinated intere-only 14,53 - 14,53
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 3,299,351  (1,695,07) 1,604,27.
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,632,64. - 1,632,64
Securitized loans held for investment, ne
allowance for loan losst 1,082,31 (983,43 98,88(
Other asset 697,75: - 697,75:
Total asset $ 7,432,05' $ (2,678,51) $ 4,753,54.
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 1,420,37! - 1,420,337
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-
Agency RMBS 1,241,29° (1,241,29) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans
held for investmen 959,60: (959,607 -
Other liabilities 157,10t - 157,10t
Total liabilities 3,778,38. (2,200,89) 1,577,48:
Total stockholders' equi 3,653,67. (477,61) 3,176,06

Total liabilities and stockholders' equ

$ 7,432,05 $ (2,678,51) $ 4,753,54

Book Value Per Shai

$ 3.5€¢ $

(0.46) $ 3.1¢

December 31, 201
(dollars in thousands, except per share

data)
GAAP Estimated
Book Economic
Value  Adjustment: Book Value
Assets:
Non-Agency RMBS, at fair valu
Senior $ 88 $ - $ 88
Senior intere-only 122,86 - 122,86
Subordinate: 547,79 - 547,79:
Subordinated intere-only 16,25 - 16,25
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI~ 3,274,20.  (1,730,42) 1,543,78.
Agency RMBS, at fair valu 1,806,69 - 1,806,69
Securitized loans held for investment, ne
allowance for loan losst 1,300,13. (1,191,60) 108,52«
Other asset 674,45: - 674,45:
Total asset $ 7,742,48 $ (2,922,02) $ 4,820,46
Liabilities:
Repurchase agreements, Agency RN 1,528,02! - 1,528,02!
Securitized debt, collateralized by Non-
Agency RMBS 1,336,26. (1,336,26) -
Securitized debt, collateralized by loans
held for investmen 1,169,711 (1,169,71)) -
Other liabilities 166,01- - 166,01«
Total liabilities 4,200,01¢ (2,505,97) 1,694,03
Total stockholders' equi 3,542,471 (416,059 3,126,42




Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 7,742,48 $ (2,922,02) $ 4,820,46

Book Value Per Shai $ 3.4t $ (0.40) $ 3.0F

Our estimate of economic book value has imporiaritdtions. Our estimate of fair value is as gfant in time and subject to significant
judgment, primarily the estimate of the fair vabfehe securities issued by the trusts which we anth can freely sell or pledge. Should
sell the assets in our portfolio, we may realizeéamally different proceeds from the sale than \egénestimated as of the reporting date.
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The calculation of estimated economic book valuscdbed above is used by management to underdtarfdit value of the assets we own
and the liabilities for which we are legally obligd, and is presented for informational use ofiliie estimated economic book value should
not be viewed in isolation and is not a substifatebook value computed in accordance with GAAP.

Portfolio Review

During the quarter ended March 31, 2013, on anexgde basis, we purchased $7.4 million, sold $i8asand, and received $476.1 million
in principal payments related to our Agency and M@ency RMBS. Securitized loans decreased to Billian at March 31, 2013 from $1.3
billion at December 31, 2012, primarily due to pipal repayments of $211.4 million during the gaartThese principal payments were
consistent with management’s expectations.

The following table summarizes certain charactessaf our portfolio at March 31, 2013 and Decembir2012.

March 31, December 31

2013 2012
(dollars in thousands
Interest earning assets at pe-end * $ 6,73430. $ 7,068,03
Interest bearing liabilities at peri-end $ 3,621,27. $ 4,033,99
Leverage at peric-end 1.0:1 1.1:1
Leverage at peri-end (recourse 0.4:1 0.4:1
Portfolio Composition, at principal valt
Nor-Agency RMBS 76.4% 74.%
Seniol 0.C% 0.C%
Senior, interest onl 26.1% 25.2%
Subordinate 9.1% 8.8%
Subordinated, interest or 2.2% 2.1%
RMBS transferred to consolidated VI 39.(% 38.5%
Agency RMBS 14.2% 14.7%
Securitized loan 9.4% 10.7%
Fixec-rate percentage of portfol 74.% 75.2%
Adjustablerate percentage of portfol 25.1% 24.€%

* Excludes cash and cash equivale
The following table presents details of each aslsests in our portfolio at March 31, 2013 and Decen8i, 2012. The principal or notional

value represents the interest income earning balaheach class. The weighted average figureweighted by each investment’s respective
principal/notional value in the asset class.

March 31, 201¢

Weighted
Principal o Weighted Average Principal
Notional Weighted  Average & 12 Weighted Writedowns
Value at Weighted Average Month Month Weighted Average Weighted During
PeriodEnd Average Weighted Weighted Yield at CPR CPR Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in ~ Amortized Average Average PeriodEnc at Period- at Period-  Delinquenc' Severity Credit (dollars in
thousands  Cost Basi:  Fair Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemel  thousands
Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie
Seniol $ 12¢  $ 449: % 54.8¢ 0.0(% 11.9% 0.1(% 35.0(% 0.0(% 0.0(% 12.6(% $ -
Senior, intere:
only $2,973,38 $ 448 $ 4.04 1.68% 10.2% 17.6% 17.81% 19.0&% 50.31% 0.0% $ -
Subordinate $1,04333 $ 451 % 56.1( 3.17% 10.87% 18.22% 18.7(% 17.3% 50.3"% 1512% $  13,66(
Subordinatec
interest only $ 246,461 $ 6.0¢ $ 5.8t 2.11% 8.2¢% 15.8¢% 17.08% 18.8¢% 45.06% 0.00% $ -
RMBS transferre
to
consolidated
variable
interest entitie $4,444,160 $ 543t $ 75.7¢ 4.82% 15.5&% 13.6%% 14.71% 28.42% 58.81% 201% $ 56,97¢
Agency Mortgag-
Backed Securitie $1,623,24 $ 103.1f $ 108.0¢ 4.51% 3.55% 30.16% 26.3%% NA NA 0.00% $ -
Securitized loan $1,073,32  $ 101.98 $ 101.5: 4.8(% 3.8(% 47.48% 4.77% 1.02% 4.3¢% 12.8t% $ 83
(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weightedefage Yield is calculated using each investmeespective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to dalieing widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, I-month loss, etc..
December 31, 201
Weighted
Principal o Weighted Average Principal
Notional Weighted Average & 12 Weighted Writedown:
Value at Weighted Average Month Month Weighted Average Weighted During
PeriodEnd Average Weighted  Weighted Yield at CPR CPR Average Loss Average Period
(dollars in ~ Amortized Average Average PeriodEnc at Period- at Period-  Delinquenc Severity Credit (dollars in

thousands  Cost Basi:  Fair Value Coupon (1) End End Pipeline 60- (2) Enhancemer  thousands




Non-Agency Mortgag-Backed Securitie

Seniol $ 12¢ $ 57.0: $ 67.0C 0.0(% 11.9(% 22.6(% 38.6(% 0.0(% 0.0(% 12.8% $ -
Senior, intere:
only $3,012,860 $ 451 % 4.0¢ 1.7€% 10.36% 17.3% 17.4%% 20.1% 50.4% 0.0% $ -
Subordinate $1,057,82 $ 447: % 51.7¢ 3.1&% 11.0% 17.3¢% 18.7%% 18.7% 51.0% 152% $ 15,807
Subordinatec
interest only $ 256,07 $ 63z $ 6.3t 2.25% 8.9(% 20.9% 16.7% 19.9%% 44.82% 0.0(% $ -
RMBS transferre
to
consolidated
variable
interest entitie $4,610,100 $ 53.9¢ $ 72.5( 4.88% 15.4% 14.8"% 14.86% 29.4% 59.02% 22% $ 70,95:
Agency Mortgag-
Backed Securitie $1,756,58 $ 103.0¢ $ 108.2¢ 4.65% 3.5¢% 28.3% 24.1% NA NA 0.0(% $ -
Securitized loan $1,284,84 $ 102.0¢ $ 102.7¢ 4.68% 3.88% 35.21% 4.45% 0.84% 4.35% 11.1¢% $ 404

(1) Bond Equivalent Yield at period end. Weightedefage Yield is calculated using each investmeespective amortized co:
(2) Calculated based on reported losses to dalieing widest data set available (i.e., -time losses, >-month loss, etc..

Based on the projected cash flows for our Non-AgeRRIBS that are not of high credit quality, a pontiof the original purchase discount is
designated as Accretable Discount, which refldespurchase discount expected to be accretednitgest income, and a portion is
designated as Non-Accretable Difference, whichesgnts the contractual principal on the securiy ifnot expected to be collected. The
amount designated as Non-Accretable Difference besgdjusted over time, based on the actual perfacenaf the security, its underlying
collateral, actual and projected cash flow fromhscallateral, economic conditions and other factiirthe performance of a security is more
favorable than previously estimated, a portiorhef amount designated as Non-Accretable Differerag Ime accreted into interest income
over time. Conversely, if the performance of a siégis less favorable than previously estimatée, amounts designated as Non-Accretable
Difference may increase, resulting in an OTTI loss.
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The following table presents changes to Accret@lideount and Non-Accretable Difference as it peddb our entire Non-Agency RMBS
portfolio for assets with purchase discounts fer darters ended March 31, 2013 and 2012.

For the Quarter Ende
March 31  December 3. September 3 March 31,
201z 2012 201z June 30, 201 2012
(dollars in thousand:
Accretable Discour

Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,11526/ $ 1,11847 $ 1,202,955 $ 1,212,27. $ 1,176,011
Accretion of discoun (39,32¢) (40,287 (36,77() (38,197 (36,33()
Purchase 93t - - - 29,56:
Sales @a7n 8 (81,690 - 33,93¢
Transfers from credit reser 18,41¢ 39,47 44,88¢ 71,98 35,94¢
Transfers to credit reser (7,122) (2,417 (10,907 (43,107 (26,86)
Balance, end of peric $ 108815 $ 1,11526: $ 1,11847 $ 1,20295 $ 1,212,27.
For the Quarter Ende
March 31  December 3. September 3 March 31,
201: 201z 201z June 30, 201 2012

(dollars in thousand:
Non-Accretable Differenc:

Balance, beginning of peric $ 1,540,78 $ 1,655,220 $ 1,773,190 $ 1,82495 $ 1,931,93
Principal Writedown: (72,05Y (85,55%) (83,949 (88,569 (57,379
Purchase 93t - - - 16,06
Sales 32 (8) (10,059 - (104,944
Net othe-than-temporary credit

impairment losse 6,162 8,18¢ 10,01« 65,68 48,36¢
Transfers from credit reser (18,419 (39,47Y) (44,889 (71,987 (35,94¢)
Transfers to credit reser 7,122 2,411 10,907 43,10" 26,86
Balance, end of peric $ 146455 $ 1,540,78 $ 1,65522 $ 1,773,19' $ 1,824,95
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Net Income (Loss) Summary
The table below summarizes the net income (losg) GAAP basis for the quarters ended March 31, 2032012.

Net Income (Loss)
(dollars in thousand:

(unaudited
For the Quarter ende
March 31, March 31,
2013 2012
Net Interest Income:
Interest incom $ 29,067 $ 51,31¢
Interest expens (1,839 (2,326¢)
Interest income, Assets of consolidated V 96,72¢ 98,34¢
Interest expense, N-recourse liabilities of VIE (26,9960 (34,049
Net interest income (expens 96,96¢ 113,29:
Other-than-temporary impairments:
Total othe-thar-temporary impairment loss - (32,077
Portion of loss recognized in other comprehensigeine (loss (6,1673) (16,28
Net othe-thar-temporary credit impairment loss (6,163 (48,364)
Other gains (losses)
Unrealized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ 5,40z 812
Realized gains (losses) on interest rate s\ (5,530 (4,399
Gains (losses) on interest rate sw (128) (3,586)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on inte-only RMBS (2,019 17,947
Realized gains (losses) on sales of investment: 6 16,01(
Total other gains (losse (1,13%) 30,37:
Net investment income (los 89,66¢ 95,30(
Other expenses
Management fee 6,44¢ 12,90¢
Expense recoveries from Manay (1,85%) -
Net Management fee 4,59¢ 12,90¢
Provision for loan losse 424 167
General and administrative expen 4,84 1,98¢
Total other expense 9,86¢ 15,06¢
Income (loss) before income taxe 79,80: 80,23t
Income taxe: 2 2
Net income (loss $ 79,80. $ 80,23

Our net income decreased by $432 thousand foruhgey ended March 31, 2013 as compared to MarcB@R. Our earnings per share on
both a basic and diluted basis was $0.08 per sbatke both quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 2012

Net interest income (expense) declined by $16.8anito $97.0 million in the first quarter of 208®m $113.3 million in first quarte

2012. This decrease was primarily driven by aidedh general interest income of $22.2 millior$29.1 million in the first quarter of 2013
from $51.3 million in the same period of 2012. §Hecline was the result of a change in the investmportfolio holdings as we reduced our
holdings in Agency RMBS from the first quarter @12 to the current period.

During the quarters ended March 31, 2013 net O&gognized declined by $42.2 million over the samgopl of 2012. The decrease in
OTTl is attributable to improving fair values aslias favorable changes in cash flows expectectodiiected. The favorable change in c
flows is mainly attributable to improvements in egfed cash flow of our Non-Agency RMBS, and incirgaprepayment speeds, which
result in an increase in the present value of fasls expected to be collected.

OTTI charges, recognized on our Non-Agency RMB8ect changes in our estimate of the amount anthgrof cash flows expected to be
collected. At March 31, 2013, we had a gross uiredlloss of $728 thousand related to Agency RMB&agross unrealized loss of $27.0
million related to Non-Agency RMBS. ImpairmentsAgency RMBS in an unrealized loss position at Ma3d, 2013 are considered
temporary and not credit related. Unrealized losseslon-Agency RMBS for which no OTTI was recordkding the quarter are considered
temporary based on an estimate of the cash flopsaed to be collected for such RMBS, which considecent bond performance and
expected future performance of the underlying ¢efkd. Significant judgment is used in estimatimghbour cash flows expected to be
collected for its Non-Agency RMBS and the creditngmnent of OTTI. Refer to “Significant Accountifglicies”in the accompanying not
to the consolidated financial statements for mofermation regarding the recognition of OTTI.
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Net income also increased as we recorded loweunnreglized losses on our IO RMBS of $19.0 millionthe quarter ended March 31, 2(
as compared to the same period of 2012. We haeteel to have all changes in fair value of our @B recorded in earnings as part of our
fair-value election.

Additionally, we had reduced realized gains indbarter ended March 31, 2013 compared to the sanedpof 2012 of $16.0
million. During the quarter ended March 31, 204/8,sold investments with an amortized cost of &hbéisand for a realized gain of $6
thousand compared to realized gains of $16.0 mifiaw the quarter ended March 31, 2012.

Finally, management expenses declined by $6.5anifior the quarter ended March 31, 2013 as compgartite same period of 2012, due to
the reduction of management fees from our man&gBr\C. See further discussion of the changes ¢dRIDAC management agreement in
our discussion of related party transactions below.

Overall net income for the quarter ended March2®1,3 was not significantly different from net incerfor the quarter ended March 31, 2(
Results of Operations for the Quarters Ended Marci31, 2013 and 2012

Our primary source of income is interest incomenedron our assets. Our economic net interest incaoals interest income excluding
interest earned on cash and cash equivalentsliesest expense and realized losses on interesswatps. For the purpose of computing
economic net interest income and ratios relatingptt of funds measures throughout this sectidgarést expense includes net interest
payments on interest rate swaps, which is presestdtealized gains (losses) on interest rate simapg Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Income. Interessradps are used to hedge the increase in inteagsbp repurchase agreements in a rising
rate environment. Presenting the net contraciuetést payments on interest rate swaps with tieesist paid on interest-bearing liabilities
reflects our total contractual interest paymenite believe this presentation is useful to invesharsause this presentation depicts the
economic value of our investment strategy, by shgveictual interest expense and net interest incaMgere indicated, interest expense,
including interest payments on interest rate swigpgferred to as economic interest expense. ®jneicated, net interest income reflecting
interest payments on interest rate swaps, is egldor as economic net interest income.

The following table reconciles the GAAP and non-GAfkeasurements reflected in the Management’s Bigmuand Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.

Add: Net Less: Nei
Realized Realized Economic
GAAP GAAP Losseson Economic GAAP Net Losses on Net
Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest
Income Expense  Rate Swap Expense Income Rate Swap Income (1)
For the Quarter Ended Marc
31, 2013 $ 12579' $ 2882¢ $ 553C $ 34,35 $ 96,96¢ $ 553C $ 91,42:
For the Year Ended Decemt
31, 2012 $ 58944( $ 126,55¢ $ 20,220 $ 146,78. $ 462,88. $ 20,22! $ 442,63¢
For the Quarter Ende
December 31, 201 $ 13355. $ 3387 $ 533 $ 39,200 $ 99,67¢ $ 533: $ 94,33
For the Quarter Ended
September 30, 201 $ 14469 $ 34,35¢ $ 529¢ $ 39,65« $ 110,34( $ 529¢ $ 105,03t
For the Quarter Ended June
30, 2012 $ 16152« $ 2195 $ 5194 $ 27,14 $ 13957 $ 519/ $ 134,37
For the Quarter Ended Marc
31, 2012 $ 14966( $ 3637F $ 439¢ $ 40,77¢ $ 113,290 $ 4,39¢ $ 108,89.

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
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Economic Net Interest Income

The table below shows our average earning assktsitierest earned on assets, yield on averageeisit earning assets, average debt bal
economic interest expense, economic average céshd$, economic net interest income, and netéstarate spread for the periods prese

Yield on Economic
Average Average Economic  Economic Net Net
Earning Interest Interest Average Interest Average Interest Interest
Assets Earned or  Earning Debt Expense Cost Income Rate
Held (1) Assets (1 Assets Balance (2) of Funds 1) (2) Spreac

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended

March 31, 201! $11,631,21 $ 125,78: 4.35% $3,803,94 $ 34,35¢ 3.61% $ 91,42 0.72%
For The Year Ended

December 31, 201 $10,721,30 $ 589,42 5.5(% $4,372,03. $ 146,78: 3.36% $ 442,63¢ 2.14%
For The Quarter Ended

December 31, 201 $10,956,75 $ 133,54 4.8t% $4,014,15° $ 39,207 3.91% $ 94,33¢ 0.97%
For The Quarter Ended

September 30, 201 $12,366,20 $ 144,69. 4.66% $4,397,21. $ 39,65¢ 3.61% $ 105,03t 1.07%
For The Quarter Ended Ju

30, 2012 $ 9,898,15. $ 161,52: 6.52% $4,718,43 $ 27,14; 2.3(% $ 134,37! 4.22%
For The Quarter Ended

March 31, 201. $ 9,664,090 $ 149,66! 6.1%% $4,358,33. $ 40,77 3.7¢% $ 108,89: 2.45%

(1) Excludes cash and cash equivale
(2) Includes effect of realized losses on interatt swaps

Our economic net interest income declined by $iilkon for the quarter ended March 31, 2013 as parad to the same period of

2012. Our net interest spread, which equals thkel yin our average assets for the period lessciti@oenic average cost of funds for the
period, declined by 173 basis points for the quanteled March 31, 2013 from the same period of 202 attribute the decline in economic
net interest income for the quarter ended Marcl2813 compared to 2012 to decrease in our yieldurraverage assets.

Interest Income and Average Earning Asset Yield

Our average earning assets increased by $2.0rbéBmf March 31, 2013 from the quarter ended M8&4gH2012. Our interest income
declined by $23.9 million for the quarter ended &feB1, 2013 from quarter ended March 31, 2012. yiélel on our portfolio declined by
186 basis points for the quarter ended March 31323 compared to the same period of 2012. Widl@verage earning assets increased
year over year, the yield on these assets hamdddiue to the addition of three new securitizatioiwhole loans totaling approximately $
billion which yield less than the securitizatiorfSRMBS securities.

Economic Interest Expense and the Cost of Funds

The borrowing rate at which we are able to finamgeassets using repurchase agreements is typeazaliglated to LIBOR and the term of 1
financing. The table below shows our average beetbfunds, economic interest expense, averageot@shds (inclusive of realized losses
on interest rate swaps), average one-month LIBO&age six-month LIBOR, average one-month LIBORtre¢ to average six-month
LIBOR, and average cost of funds relative to averige- and six- month LIBOR.

Average Average
One- Cost Average
Month of Funds Cost of
LIBOR Relative tc Funds
Average Average Relative t Average Relative tc
Average  Economic  Average One- Six- Average One- Average
Borrowed Interest Cost of Month Month Six-Month Month Six-Month
Funds  Expense (1 Funds LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR LIBOR

(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended

March 31, 201! $3,803,94 $ 34,35¢ 3.61% 0.24% 0.72% (0.4%%) 3.31% 2.88%
For The Year Ended

December 31, 201 $4,372,03. $ 146,78 3.36% 0.24% 0.74% (0.4%) 3.12% 2.62%
For The Quarter Ended

December 31, 201 $4,014,15° $ 39,20" 3.91% 0.24% 0.72% (0.4%%) 3.67% 3.18%
For The Quarter Ended

September 30, 201 $4,397,21. $ 39,65¢ 3.61% 0.24% 0.72% (0.4%%) 3.31% 2.88%
For The Quarter Ended Ju

30, 2012 $4,718,43. $ 27,14 2.3(% 0.24% 0.72% (0.4%) 2.06% 1.57%
For The Quarter Ended

March 31, 201. $4,358,33. $ 40,77 3.7/% 0.26% 0.76% (0.50%) 3.48% 2.98%

(1) Includes effect of realized losses on interat



swaps.

Average borrowed funds decreased by $554.4 miisrof the quarter ended March 31, 2013 as comparéue quarter ended March
2012. This decline is due primarily to a signifitaeduction in repurchase agreements year over yias decline reflects our rebalancing
the portfolio from agency collateralized repurchageeements to securitized debt collateralizedbbpd held for investment.

Economic interest expense decreased by $6.4 miltionhe quarter ended March 31, 2013 as compardte same period of 2012, T
decline is due to the decrease in our average Weddunds for the quarter ended March 31, 2013oaspared to March 31, 2012. 1
average cost of funds did not significantly champgeiod over period as average one-month andngirth LIBOR rates did not char
significantly from the quarter ended March 31, 2@s3compared to March 31, 2012. The reductiompiaa is due primarily to the incre
in securitized loans held for investment which proela lower yield than the RMBS securities.
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Gains and Losses on Sales of Assets

During the quarter ended March 31, 2013, we soldBBNMprimarily Agency RMBS) with a carrying value $76 thousand for realized ga
of $6 thousand. During the quarter ended Marct2812, we sold RMBS with a carrying value of $63.iam for realized gains of $16.0
million. Capital gains from sales of securities malized when management believes it is apprapt@asell a security. Management may
decide to sell securities to reduce leverage irpth&olio, improve liquidity and take advantagenoérket conditions.

Secured Debt Financing Transactions

We did not resecuritize any RMBS or jumbo prime whole loans ngrihe quarter ended March 31, 2013. During trertgu ended Mare
31, 2012, we financed the purchase of $753.7 milbé jumbo prime whole loans by securitizing andlirsg senior bonds to third pal
investors for net proceeds of $696.1 million. Weiireed the subordinate tranches of the securitizati

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses related to our s¢ized loans held for investment represents managenestimate of expected future losses on
the securitized loans held. During the quarterednidarch 31, 2013, the provision for loan lossesdased by $424 thousand, net of principal
writedowns on loans of $83 thousand. The totah loas reserve as of March 31, 2013 is $12.0 milliDuring the quarter ended March 31,
2012, the provision for loan losses increased ®2%Bousand.

Management Fee and General and Administrative Expeses

The table below shows our total management feegandral and administrative, or G&A, expenses agpeoed to average total assets and
average equity for the periods presented.

Total Total
Total Management Management
Management Fee and G&A Fee and G&A
Fee and G&A Expenses/Tot Expenses/Averay

Expense! Assets Equity
(Ratios have been annualized, dollars in thouse
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 9,441 0.5(% 1.05%
For The Year Ended December 31, 2 $ 58,79¢ 0.7€% 1.78%
For The Quarter Ended December 31, 2 $ 12,65¢ 0.66% 1.45%
For The Quarter Ended September 30, 2 $ 15,79¢ 0.8(% 1.92%
For The Quarter Ended June 30, 2 $ 15,44+ 0.7% 1.95%
For The Quarter Ended March 31, 2( $ 14,89¢ 0.74% 1.92%

We paid FIDAC a management fee of $6.4 million &&&.9 million for the quarters ended March 31, 28a4d 2012, respectively. The
management fee is based on our stockholdepsity as defined in the investment managementaggat. The decrease in the managemel
is due to the agreement to lower the managemenirfileall our SEC filings are current. See furtdéscussion of the management fee and
other agreements with FIDAC in our discussion ¢dtesl party transactions below.

G&A expenses were $4.8 million and $2.0 million foe quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 2012, régplgc Our G&A expenses
increased primarily due to increased legal and atting fees as well as increased servicing feescaed with the CSMC 2012-CIM1,
CSMC 2012-CIM2 and CSMC 2012-CIM securitizations.

Our Manager has agreed to pay all past and futipenses that we and/or our Audit Committee incu¢tpevaluate our accounting policy
related to the application of GAAP to our Non-Agg®MBS portfolio (the Evaluation); (2) restate dimancial statements for the period
covering 2008 through 2011 as a result of the Etadn (the Restatement Filing); and (3) investigatd evaluate any shareholder derivative
demands arising from the Evaluation and/or the&estent Filing (the Investigation); provided, howewhat our Manager’s obligation to
pay expenses applies only to expenses not paidibinsurers under our insurance policies. Expesbal include, without limitation, fees
and costs incurred with respect to auditors (toetktent such fees and costs exceed our originsfignated audit fees of $542,400), outside
counsel, and consultants engaged by us and/or adit Sommittee for the Evaluation, Restatemenniiland the Investigation. The amount
paid by our Manager related to these expensesdéogiarter ended March 31, 2013 is $1.9 millioniamtesented in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Incerax@ense recoveries from Manager.
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We reimburse FIDAC for our pro rata portion of reetephone, utilities, office furniture, equipmemachinery and other office, internal and
overhead expenses of FIDAC and its affiliates neglifor our operations. During the quarters endadch 31, 2013 and 2012, we
reimbursed FIDAC approximately $99 thousand andbghbusand for such expenses, respectively.

Net Income (Loss) and Return on Average Equity

Our net income was $79.8 million and $80.2 millfonthe quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 201pentiwely. Economic net interest
income as a percentage of average equity decrégsg@¥ basis points for the quarter ended Marct2813 as compared to the same period
of 2012. The decline in our economic net intenesdme as a percentage of average equity is dietiower yield on our average assets 1
the increase in securitized loans held for investm&he return on average equity decreased byoadis points for the quarter ended March
31, 2013 as compared to the same period of 20h2.d€cline in our return on average equity is prindue to the decline in the net interest
rate spread, offset in part by reduced manageneest fThe table below shows our economic net sttéreome, realized gains (losses) on
sale of assets and the credit related OTTI, rederel unrealized gains (losses) on interest ragépswand 10s, total management fee and (
expenses, and income tax, each as a percentagerafja equity, and the return on average equitthiperiods presented.

Realized an
Unrealized
Realized Gains
Gains (Losses) on Total
Economic Net  (Losses)on Interest Ratt  Management Fee
Interest Sales and Swaps and & G&A Income Tax Return on
Income/Averag OTTI/Average |Os/Average Expenses/Avera; Benefit/Averag Average
Equity * Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity

(Ratios have been annualize
For The Quarter Ended Mar

31, 2018 10.1%% (0.73%) 0.4%% (1.05%) 0.00% 8.87%
For The Year Ended

December 31, 201 13.4%% (1.44%) (0.2€%) (1.7€%) 0.00% 9.95%
For The Quarter Ended

December 31, 201 10.85% (1.0%%) 0.68% (1.45%) 0.0(% 9.04%
For The Quarter Ende

September 30, 201 12.7%% 7.11% (2.4(%) (1.92%) 0.00% 15.5%
For The Quarter Ended Jun:

30, 2012 16.92% (8.14%) (1.7(%) (1.95%) 0.00% 5.14%
For The Quarter Ended Mar

31, 2012 14.01% (4.18%) 2.41% (1.92%) 0.0(% 10.3%

* Includes the effect of realized losses on interate swap:
Exposure to European Financial Counterparties

A significant portion of our Agency RMBS is finarttwith repurchase agreements. We secure our bimgswinder these agreements by
pledging our Agency RMBS as collateral to the lendée collateral we pledge exceeds the amourteobbrrowings under each agreement,
typically with the extent of over-collateralizatitveing at least 3% of the amount borrowed. Ifdbenterparty to the repurchase agreement
defaults on its obligations and we are not abletwver our pledged assets, we are at risk ofdasia over-collateralized amount. The
amount of this exposure is the difference betwberatount loaned to us plus interest due to thetegoearty and the fair value of the
collateral pledged by us to the lender includingraed interest receivable on such collateral.

We also use interest rate swaps to manage ouesttete risks. Under these swap agreements,atlgelAgency RMBS as collateral as part
of a margin arrangement for interest rate swapsattgain an unrealized loss position. If a swapnterparty were to default on its obligation,
we would be exposed to a loss to the extent tleaathount of our Agency RMBS pledged exceeded thealimed loss on the associated
swaps and we were not able to recover the excdisseral.
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Over the past several years, several large Eurdipearcial institutions have experienced finandidiiculty and have been either rescued by
government assistance or by other large Europeaksha institutions. Some of these financial tosibns or their U.S. subsidiaries have
provided us financing under repurchase agreemente tilave entered into interest rate swaps with satitutions. We have entered into
repurchase agreements and/or interest rate swépsiwicounterparties as of March 31, 2013 thatkeitteer domiciled in Europe or are a U.S.-
based subsidiary of a European-domiciled finarinstitution. The following table summarizes oupesure to such counterparties at March
31, 2013:

Repurchase Interest Rate Exposure as a
Number of Agreement Swaps Percentage of
Country Counterpartie Financing at Fair Value Exposure (1 Total Asset:
(dollars in thousand:
France 1 177,83 $ - $ 8,81t 0.12%
Germany 1 - (12,925 1,86: 0.0:%
Netherland: 1 186,52¢ - 8,97: 0.12%
Switzerlanc 2 232,87 (35,617 18,34 0.25%
United Kingdom 1 147,60¢ - 5,291 0.07%
Total 6 $ 744,840 $ (48,53) $ 43,28 0.5%%

(1) Represents the amount of securities pledgetliteral to each counterparty less the aggreafate
repurchase agreement financing and unrealizedlossvaps for each counterpai

At March 31, 2013, we did not use credit defaulapsvor other forms of credit protection to hedgedkposures summarized in the table
above.

If the European credit crisis continues to impaesse major European financial institutions, itésgible that it will also impact the operations
of their U.S. subsidiaries. Our financings andrafiens could be adversely affected by such eveihts.monitor our exposure to our
repurchase agreement and swap counterpartiesemular basis, using various methods, includingew\of recent rating agency actions,
financial relief plans, credit spreads or otheralepments and by monitoring the amount of cashsaadrities collateral pledged and the
associated loan amount under repurchase agreearatits the fair value of swaps with our counteiipart We make reverse margin calls on
our counterparties to recover excess collaterpeasitted by the agreements governing our finanaimgngements or interest rate swaps, or
may try to take other actions to reduce the amotintir exposure to a counterparty when necessary.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
General

Liquidity measures our ability to meet cash requieets, including ongoing commitments to repay aurdwings, purchase RMBS, mortg:
loans and other assets for our portfolio, pay diuis and other general business needs. Our mirstiprces of capital and funds for
additional investments primarily include earningsnf our investments, borrowings under securitizegtiand re-securitizations, repurchase
agreements and other financing facilities, and @eds from equity offerings.

To meet our short term (one year or less) liquidigds, we expect to continue to borrow fundseénfeinm of repurchase agreements and,
subject to market conditions, other types of finagc The terms of the repurchase transaction bongs under our master repurchase
agreements generally conform to the terms in thedstrd master repurchase agreement as publishbe Securities Industry and Financial
Markets Association, or SIFMA, as to repayment, gimarequirements and the segregation of all saearnite have initially sold under the
repurchase transaction. In addition, each lengecally requires that we include supplemental teand conditions to the standard master
repurchase agreement. Typical supplemental tensh€@nditions include changes to the margin maariea requirements, cross default
provisions, required haircuts (or the percentageithsubtracted from the value of RMBS that cellalizes the financing), purchase price
maintenance requirements, and requirements thdispllites related to the repurchase agreemertidegdid or arbitrated in a particular
jurisdiction. These provisions may differ for easftour lenders.

We also expect to meet our short term liquiditydsely relying on the cash flows generated by owestiments. These cash flows are
primarily comprised of monthly principal and intet@ayments received on our investments. We nsaysall our investments and utilize
those proceeds to meet our short term liquiditydse® enter into non-recourse financing of our @stbeough sales of securities to third
parties of loan securitization or RMBS re-secuaitian transactions that we have completed in grésiods.

Based on our current portfolio, leverage ratio andilable borrowing arrangements, we believe osetzswill be sufficient to enable us to
meet anticipated shotérm liquidity requirements. However, a declingtia value of our collateral could cause a tempoiquidity shortfall
due to the timing of margin calls on the financargangements and the actual receipt of the caatecketo principal paydowns. If our cash
resources are at any time insufficient to satisfylmuidity requirements, we may have to sell isiveents, potentially at a loss, or issue debt
or additional equity securities in a common stoffkring.
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To meet our longer term liquidity needs (greatantbne year), we expect our principal sources pitaleand funds to continue to be provided
by earnings from our investments, borrowings ursgeuritizations and reecuritizations, repurchase agreements and otrending facilities
as well as proceeds from equity offerings. Assalteof our failure to file our SEC filings by tliéing date required by the SEC (including 1
grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25 under thaiStées Exchange Act of 1934, as amended), we atreligible to file a new Form S-3
registration statement or use our existing ForBr8gistration statements to raise additional gqrapital until filings with the SEC have be
timely made for a full year. Our ineligibility tase Form S-3 during this time period will have gatese impact on our ability to quickly
access the public capital markets because we wieutéquired to file a long-form registration stagemnand wait for the SEC to declare such
registration statement effective.

In addition to the principal sources of capitalaésed above, we may enter into warehouse faligied use longer dated structured
repurchase agreements. The use of any partiaulaces of capital and funds will depend on markeiditions, availability of these facilities,
and the investment opportunities available to us.

Current Period

We held cash and cash equivalents of approxim&&4@.5 million and $621.2 million at March 31, 204r&d December 31, 2012,
respectively.

Our operating activities provided net cash of agpnately $66.4 million and $94.5 million for the ajers ended March 31, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. The cash provided by operating a@widecreased for the quarter ended March 31, @0&8 compared to the quarter ended
March 31, 2012 due primarily to a decrease in egoomet interest income earned on the portfoli@bf.5 million.

Our investing activities provided net cash of apprately $468.9 million for the quarter ended MaB&d 2013 and resulted in the net use of
cash of approximately $428.8 million for the quagaded March 31, 2012. During the quarter endadcki31, 2013 we generated cash
primarily from principal payments of $476.1 millisalated to all our investment assets offset iti pppurchases of $7.4 million in RMBS
securities. During the quarter ended March 31220k used cash to purchase securitized loangdelatthe CSMC 2012-CIM1 transaction
of $753.7 million and used cash to purchase RMRSriges of $91.4 million. These uses of cash wefget in part by principal payments
received of $337.3 million and proceeds from safesecurities of $79.1 million.

Our financing activities resulted in the net useash of approximately $507.0 million for the geagnded March 31, 2013 and provided net
cash of approximately $259.2 million for the quagaded March 31, 2012. During the quarter endadchl31, 2013, we used cash to repay
repurchase agreements, net of new borrowings of $1fillion. Other uses of cash for the quartetezhMarch 31, 2013 included repaym

of principal of our securitized debt of $306.9 moitl and the payment of the fourth quarter 2012ddimd of $92.4 million. During the quarter
ended March 31, 2012, we received proceeds fromssuance of debt related to the CSMC 2012-CIMustzation of $696.1 million. This
receipt of cash was offset in part by our use shda repay repurchase agreements of $170.1 milietnof new borrowings. In addition we
used cash for the repayments of debt on securiizetbwings of $149.6 million and the payment ofidénds of $112.9 million.

We expect to continue to finance our RMBS portfddimely through repurchase agreements and loaosgh the securitization market. In
addition, we may from time to time sell securitéssa source of cash to fund new purchases.
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At March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the reimgimaturities on our RMBS repurchase agreemente a® follows.

December 3:
March 31, 201 2017
(dollars in thousand:

Overnight $ 25,98¢ $ -
1-29 days 791,37. 732,80!
30 to 59 day: 284,76:. 325,91!
60 to 89 day: 258,16:- -
90 to 119 day 60,09( 211,13
Greater than or equal to 120 d: - 258,16:
Total $ 1420,37 $ 1,528,02

We collateralize the repurchase agreements weou§gance our operations with Agency RMBS. Ourrdeuparties negotiate a ‘haircut’
when we enter into a financing transaction, whiahias from lender to lender. The size of the haireflects the perceived risk associated
with holding the RMBS by the lender. The haircrtdvpdes lenders with a cushion for daily markeueamovements that reduce the need for
a margin call to be issued or margin to be retuasedormal daily increases or decreases in RMB&ahaalues occur. At March 31, 2013,
the weighted average haircut on our repurchaseagmets was 4.87%. Despite the haircut, repurclgreements subject us to two types of
margin calls. First, there are monthly margin ctibst are triggered as principal payments and pyeagnts are received by us as these
payments lower the value of the collateral. Assult, we expect to receive margin calls from @purchase counterparties monthly simply
due to the principal paydowns on our Agency RMBIBe Tonthly principal payments and pre-paymentsiat&nown in advance and vary
depending on the behavior of the borrowers reltigtle underlying mortgages. Second, counterpariaes margin calls or return margin as
a result of normal daily increases or decreasesset fair values. In addition, when financingéssising standard form of SIFMA Master
Repurchase Agreements, the counterparty to theagnet typically nets its exposure to us on all amtding repurchase agreements and
issues margin calls if movement of the fair valakthe assets in the aggregate exceeds their dllevexposure to us. A decline in asset fair
values could create a margin call, or may creatmangin call depending on the counterparty’s spepiblicy. In addition, counterparties
consider a number of factors, including their aggte exposure to us as a whole and the numberysfrdenaining before the repurchase
transaction closes prior to issuing a margin &dle Note 5 to our Consolidated Financial Statenfents discussion on how we determine
fair values of the RMBS collateralizing our repussk agreements.

The table below presents our average repurchaaadsmband repurchase balance at each period etttefperiods presented. Our balance at
period-end tends to have little fluctuation frore tiverage balances except in periods where welaustiag the size of our portfolio by using
leverage. Our average repurchase agreement balaMarch 31, 2013 decreased compared to our aweepyirchase agreement balance for
the quarter ended December 31, 2012 due to salegesfcy RMBS during the fourth quarter of 2012 BY¥.0 million. The Company
continues to deploy capital to the strategic puselaof investments.

Average Repurchase

Repurchase Balance at

Period Balance Period Enc

(dollars in thousand:

Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 1,460,62' $ 1,420,37!
Year Ended December 31, 20 $ 2,122,42. % 1,528,02!
Quarter Ended December 31, 2( $ 1,567,60! $ 1,528,02!
Quarter Ended September 30, 2! $ 1,954,950 $ 1,658,901
Quarter Ended June 30, 20 $ 2,412,82 $ 2,362,08!
Quarter Ended March 31, 20 $ 2,554,29" $ 2,502,87

We are not required to maintain any specific debtquity ratio. We believe the appropriate leverigehe particular assets we are financing
depends on the credit quality and risk of thosetassAt March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 atat debt was approximately $3.6 billi
and $4.0 billion, which represented a debt-to-gquitio of approximately 1.0:1 and 1.1:1, respeadiiv We include repurchase agreements
and securitized debt in the numerator of our de#euity ratio and stockholders’ equity as the deimator.

We do not manage our portfolio to have a pre-dedg@ghamount of borrowings at quarter-end or yat- Our borrowings at period end a
shapshot of borrowing as of a date, and this nurshheuld be expected to differ from average borrgwiaver the period. Our borrowings
will change as we implement our portfolio and nisnagement strategies to address changing mam@itions by increasing or decreasing
leverage. Our borrowings may change during penaasn we raise capital, and in certain instanceswag purchase additional assets and
increase borrowings prior to an expected capiiakraSince our average borrowings and period enetings can be expected to differ, we
believe our average borrowings during a period jplesa more accurate representation of our expasuhe risks associated with leverage.
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Stockholders’ Equity

On January 28, 2011, we entered into an equityiloigton agreement with FIDAC and UBS Securitiedd,lor UBS. Through this
agreement, we may sell through UBS, as our salestagp to 125,000,000 shares of our common stookdinary brokers’ transactions at
market prices or other transactions as agreed ketwe and UBS. We did not sell any shares of oomaon stock under the equity
distribution agreement during the quarters endettMazl, 2013 or 2012.

On September 24, 2009, we implemented a Divideridv@stment and Share Purchase Plan, or DRSPPDRB®P provided holders of
record of our common stock an opportunity to autiicadly reinvest all or a portion of their cashtdisutions received on common stock in
additional shares of our common stock as well asdke optional cash payments to purchase shams @bmmon stock. The DRSPP was
administered by the Administrator, Computershatee DRSPP was suspended when we were no longentonreur filings beginning in tt
second quarter of 2012. During the quarter endattM31, 2012 we raised $117 thousand by issuir@d8%hares through the DRSPP.

As a result of our failure to file our SEC filingy the filing date required by the SEC (includihg grace period permitted by Rule 12b-25
under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as ae®ndve will not be able to issue shares of ourroom stock under the equity distribution
agreement or DRSPP until filings with the SEC hlgen timely made for a full year.

During the quarter ended March 31, 2013 we decldigdends to common shareholders totaling $92Mlanj or $0.09 per share. During
the quarter ended March 31, 2012, we declared elidd to common shareholders totaling $112.9 mijllkkor$0.11 per share.

The Board of Directors declared and paid a reguarterly dividend of $0.09 per share for the secéinird and fourth quarters of 2013. The
Board of Directors has determined that there valblregular quarterly dividend of $0.09 per sharesfich of the first two quarters of 2014.
The Board of Directors will review this programeafthe conclusion of the second quarter of 2014. Bbard of Directors also declared and
paid a special dividend of $0.20 per share payabl@anuary 31, 2014 to shareholders of record omaig 8, 2014.

There was no preferred stock issued or outstarangf March 31, 2012 and December 31, 2012.
Related Party Transactions Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengee¢ment with FIDAC, pursuant to which FIDAC isidatl to receive a management
fee and, in certain circumstances, a terminatierafed reimbursement of certain expenses as dedénike management agreement. The
management fee and expenses do not have fixeded@drdnable payments and the termination fee iomnger applicable.

The Management Agreement

On November 15, 2007 we entered into a managengee¢ment with FIDAC, which provided for an initiekrm through December 31, 2010
with an automatic one-year extension option angestitto certain termination rights. The Compensatmmmittee of the Board of Directors
renewed the management agreement through Decerhp20B3. In 2011 and 2010, we paid to our Managgraaterly management fee eq
to 1.50% per annum of our gross Stockholders’ Bais defined in the management agreement). Effedtovember 28, 2012, the
management fee was reduced to 0.75% per annunosg Gtockholders’ Equity, which reduction will raman effect until we are current on
all of our filings required under applicable setias laws.

We are obligated to reimburse our Manager forastincurred under the management agreementditica] the management agreement
permits our Manager to require us to pay for its qata portion of rent, telephone, utilities, offifurniture, equipment, machinery and other
office, internal and overhead expenses that ourdganincurred in connection with our operationseSeéhexpenses are allocated between our
Manager and us based on the ratio of the propodfigmoss assets compared to the gross assets ethbpg@ur Manager as calculated at each
guarter end. Together we will modify this allocatimethodology, subject to the approval of our badrdirectors if the allocation becomes
inequitable (i.e., if we become very highly levesdgompared to our Manager’s other funds and a¢spun
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March 2013 Amendment to Management Agreel

On March 8, 2013 we amended the management agrédméme amendment, we memorialized the redudtidche management fee.
Additionally, our Manager agreed to pay all past &nture expenses that we and/or our Audit Commiitteur to: (1) evaluate our accounting
policy related to the application of GAAP to ouriNAgency RMBS portfolio (the Evaluation); (2) regtaur financial statements for the
period covering 2008 through 2011 as a result ®Bhaluation (the Restatement Filing); and (3) stigate and evaluate any shareholder
derivative demands arising from the Evaluation antlie Restatement Filing (the Investigation); ided, however, that our Manager’s
obligation to pay expenses applies only to expensépaid by our insurers under our insurance fEdicExpenses shall include, without
limitation, fees and costs incurred with respeauditors, outside counsel, and consultants engaged and/or our Audit Committee for the
Evaluation, Restatement Filing and the Investigatio

The amendment also provides that the independeettdis or the holders of a majority of the outdtag shares of common stock (other than
those held by Annaly or its affiliates) may elextérminate the management agreement upon 30 déige it any time in their sole discreti
without the payment of a termination fee. Addititywave may terminate the management agreementtafieimmediately if (i) our Manager
engages in any act of fraud, misappropriation otl&) or embezzlement against the us, (ii) theam isvent of any gross negligence on the

of our Manager in the performance of its dutiesarrtie management agreement, (iii) there is a carmnement of any proceeding relating to
our Managers$ bankruptcy or insolvency, (iv) there is a dissoluof our Manager, or (v) our Manager is convict# (including a plea of no
contendere) a felony.

Fees Paid Under the Management Agreer

For the quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 2012Vlanager earned management fees of $6.4 milliorfd2d million, respectively and
received expense reimbursements of $99 thousan@iZai&ithousand, respectively. From our inceptimough 2009, our Manager waived
right to require us to pay our pro rata portiomegit, telephone, utilities, office furniture, eqoipnt, machinery and other office, internal and
overhead expenses of our Manager and its affiliztgsired for our operations.

Our Manager uses the proceeds from its managemei foart to pay compensation to its officers amgloyees who, notwithstanding that
certain of them also are our officers, receive ashccompensation directly from us.

Clearing Fees

On March 1, 2011, we entered into an administrate@ices agreement with RCap Securities, IndR@ap. We use RCap, a SEC registered
broker-dealer and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Apnt clear trades for us and RCap is paid custgrfees in return for such services.
RCap may also provide brokerage services to us fime to time. During the quarters ended March2®11,3 and 2012, fees paid to RCap
were $34 thousand and $44 thousand, respectively.

Restricted Stock Grants

We granted 1,301,000 shares of restricted stoekrployees of our Manager and its affiliates and tremsof our board of directors on
January 2, 2008. During the quarters ended Mat¢l2@13 and 2012, 29,300 and 31,600 shares oiatestistock vested, respectively. Of
those vested shares 2,000 and 200 shares wergddriespectively. At March 31, 2013 2012 thesrevapproximately 586,000 and 726,800

unvested shares of restricted stock issued tdogegs of FIDAC, respectively. For the quartereshlarch 31, 2013 and 2012,
compensation expense associated with the amoatizafithe fair value of the restricted stock wapragimately $78 thousand and $82
thousand, respectively.
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following tables summarize our contractual gdgions at March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 eEtimated principal repayment
schedule of the securitized debt is based on eggeaetsh flows of the residential mortgage loarRMBS, as adjusted for expected principal
writedowns on the underlying collateral of the debt

March 31, 201

Greater Tha
Within One Oneto Thre Threeto Fivi  or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousand:

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,420,370 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,420,37

Securitized dek 557,03t 689,10: 371,06¢ 512,91t 2,130,12:

Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 3,214 5 - - 3,21¢

Interest expense on securitized debt 78,32 103,00: 68,62 206,17! 456,12;

Total $ 2,056894i $ 792,11( $ 439,69( $ 719,090 $ 4,009,83

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effeaifaviarch 31, 201:

December 31, 201

Greater Tha
Within One Oneto Thre Threeto Fivi  or Equal to

Contractual Obligation Year Years Years Five Years Total
(dollars in thousands

Repurchase agreements for RM $ 1,528,02! $ - $ - % - $ 1,528,022

Securitized dek 658,42 793,15( 430,99: 555,71 2,438,28.

Interest expense on RMBS repurchase agreemer 3,481 5 - - 3,48¢

Interest expense on securitized debt 88,17: 113,93: 72,90 201,72: 476,73

Total $ 2,278,100 $ 907,08t $ 503,89 $ 757,43( $ 4,446,52

(1) Interest is based on variable rates in effsaifeDecember 31, 201
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We do not have any relationships with unconsolidiatatities or financial partnerships, such as iestibften referred to as structured finance
or special purpose entities, which would have established for the purpose of facilitating offdrade sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes. Furtivee, have not guaranteed any obligations of uncafeeld entities nor do we have any
commitment or intent to provide funding to any secitities.
Capital Requirements
At March 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, we hachai@rial commitments for capital expenditures.
Dividends
To qualify as a REIT, we must pay annual dividetedsur stockholders of at least 90% of our taxamb®me (subject to certain adjustments).
We intend to pay regular quarterly dividends to stackholders. Before we pay any dividend, we rfittmeet any operating requirements
and scheduled debt service on our financing fasliand other debt payable.
Inflation
A significant portion of our assets and liabilitix® interest rate sensitive in nature. As a resu#irest rates and other factors influence our
performance far more so than does inflation. Chaigénterest rates do not necessarily correlatk inflation rates or changes in inflation
rates. Our consolidated financial statements apgved in accordance with GAAP and our distribitindill be determined by our board of
directors consistent with our obligation to distrié to our stockholders at least 90% of our REKBlde income on an annual basis in order to
maintain our REIT qualification; in each case, adativities and financial condition are measuredwéference to historical cost and/or fair
market value without considering inflation.
Other Matters
We at all times intend to conduct our businessssood to become regulated as an investment comyoashgr the 1940 Act. If we were to
become regulated as an investment company, otityabiluse leverage would be substantially reduced.
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Section 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Company Adinds an investment company as any issuer thaitgaged or proposes to engage in the
business of investing, reinvesting, owning, holdimgrading in securities and owns or proposestuie investment securities having a vi
exceeding 40% of the value of the issadotal assets (exclusive of U.S. Government skesiind cash items) on an unconsolidated bas
“40% test”). Excluded from the term “investmentséiies,” among other things, are securities issaedhajorityowned subsidiaries that re
on the exemption from registration provided by 8ec8(c)(5)(C) of the Investment Company Act.

Certain of our subsidiaries, including Chimera Addelding LLC and certain subsidiaries that we rfayn in the future, rely on the

exemption from registration provided by Section)@&XC) of the Investment Company Act. Section EXC), as interpreted by the staff of
the Securities and Exchange Commission (or the SEGlires us to invest at least 55% of our assétaortgages and other liens on and
interest in real estate” (or Qualifying Real Estassets) and at least 80% of our assets in Quadjfiieal Estate Assets plus real estate relatec
assets. The assets that we acquire, thereforbrated by the provisions of and the rules and ftatjons promulgated under the Investment
Company Act.

On August 31, 2011, the SEC issued a concept eetdbes] “Companies Engaged in the Business of Aoty Mortgages and Mortgage-
Related Instruments” (SEC Release No. IC-29778yddthe concept release, the SEC is reviewingpréére issues related to the Section 3
(c)(5)(C) exemption. We are monitoring developmeatated to this matter.

Based on our calculations, as of March 31, 20132&1@®, we were in compliance with the exemptiomfni@gistration provided by Section 3
(c)(5)(C) and 3(a)(1)(C) of the Investment Compaay.

As a result of the Dod8&rank Wall Street Reform and Consumer ProtectionoA010, the U.S. Commaodity Futures Trading Cosgsiain, 0
CFTC, gained jurisdiction over the regulation dkirest rate swaps. The CFTC has asserted thatahées the operators of mortgage real
estate investment trusts that use swaps as pmtiobusiness model to fall within the statutogfidition of Commodity Pool Operator, or
CPO, and, absent relief from the Division or therassion, to register as CPOs. On December 7,,24512 result of numerous requests for
no-action relief from the CPO registration requistfor operators of mortgage real estate investinests, the Division of Swap Dealer and
Intermediary Oversight of the CFTC issued no-actiief entitled “No-Action Relief from the CommadgiPool Operator Registration
Requirement for Commodity Pool Operators of CerRooled Investment Vehicles Organized as Mortgaggd RBstate Investment Trusts”
that permits a CPO to receive relief by filing ainl to perfect the use of the relief. A claim sutbed by a CPO will be effective upon filing,
so long as the claim is materially complete. Theditions that must be met to claim the reliefthe the mortgage real estate investment
trust must:

e Limit the initial margin and premiums requiredegstablish its commodity interest positions to rare@than five percent of the fair market
value of the mortgage real estate investment’s total asset:

e Limit the net income derived annually from itsvomodity interest positions that are not qualifyhr@fging transactions to less than five
percent of the mortgage real estate investmenrt’s gross income

e Ensure that interests in the mortgage real estaéstment trust are not marketed to the publiords a commodity pool or otherwise as
or in a vehicle for trading in the commodity futsyeommodity options, or swaps markets;

e Either:
o identify itself as ¢mortgage REI” in Item G of its last U.S. income tax return onmdt12(-REIT; or

o ifit has not yet filed its first U.S. incomexteeturn on Form 1120-REIT, disclose to its shaldéas that it intends to identify itself as a
“mortgage REI” in its first U.S. income tax return on Form 1-REIT.

While we disagree that the CFTE}osition that mortgage real estate investmestdithat use swaps as part of their business nfalthelithin
the statutory definition of a CPO, we have subrditeclaim for the relief set forth in the no-acti@tief entitled “No-Action Relief from the
Commodity Pool Operator Registration Requirementfommodity Pool Operators of Certain Pooled Investt Vehicles Organized as
Mortgage Real Estate Investment Trusts” and belexeneet the criteria for such relief set forthréie.
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Iltem 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Alout Market Risk

The primary components of our market risk are eeldb credit risk, interest rate risk, prepaymésk, rmarket value risk and real estate risk.
While we do not seek to avoid risk completely, vedidve the risk can be quantified from historicgberience and we seek to actively mar
that risk, to earn sufficient compensation to fystking those risks and to maintain capital lsvansistent with the risks we undertake.

Credit Risk

We are subject to credit risk in connection with mvestments in Non-Agency RMBS and residentiableHoans and face more credit risk
on assets we own which are rated below “AAA”. Ttredit risk related to these investments pertainke ability and willingness of the
borrowers to pay, which is assessed before creditanted or renewed and periodically revieweduphout the loan or security term. We
believe that residual loan credit quality, and tthesquality of our assets, is primarily determitgcdhe borrowers’ credit profiles and loan
characteristics. We use a comprehensive credigweprocess. Our analysis of loans includes borrgsfiles, as well as valuation and
appraisal data. We use compensating factors sulidués assets, low loan to value ratios and regiamemployment statistics in evaluating
loans. Our resources include a proprietary podfolanagement system, as well as third party soétsgstems. We may utilize a third party
due diligence firm to perform an independent undging review to ensure compliance with existingdglines. In addition to statistical
sampling techniques, we create adverse credit alugition samples, which we individually review. Wgect loans that fail to conform to our
standards and do not meet our underwriting crit@ieace we own a loan, our surveillance processided ongoing analysis through our
proprietary data and servicer files. Additionatlye Non-Agency\RMBS and other ABS which we acquire for our poitf@re reviewed by L
to ensure that they satisfy our risk based crit@iar review of Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS irdss utilizing a proprietary portfolio
management system. Our review of Non-Agency RMB&ather ABS is based on quantitative and qualiéagimalysis of the risk-adjusted
returns on Non-Agency RMBS and other ABS. This gsialincludes an evaluation of the collateral cbignastics supporting the RMBS such
as borrower payment history, credit profiles, gaphiic concentrations, credit enhancement, seasoaingother pertinent factors.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is highly sensitive to many dast including governmental, monetary and tax pedicdomestic and international economic
and political considerations and other factors Inelyour control. We are subject to interest ratie insconnection with our investments and
related debt obligations, which are generally repase agreements, warehouse facilities and seeigin/re-securitization vehicles. Our
repurchase agreements and warehouse facilitiedmay limited duration that are periodically refiregd at current market rates. We inter
mitigate this risk through utilization of derivagivcontracts, primarily interest rate swap agreesyantaptions, futures and mortgage options.

I nterest Rate Effects on Net | nterest Income

Our operating results depend, in large part, ofedihces between the income from our investmerdanborrowing costs. Most of our
warehouse facilities and repurchase agreementsderéimancing based on a floating rate of intecedtulated on a fixed spread over LIBOR.
The fixed spread varies depending on the type détying asset which collateralizes the financiagcordingly, the portion of our portfolio
which consists of floating interest rate assetsldlmatch-funded utilizing our expected sourceshafrt-term financing, while our fixed
interest rate assets will not be mafahded. During periods of rising interest rates, blorrowing costs associated with our investmentd tc
increase while the income earned on our fixed @#erate investments may remain substantially urgdgd This will result in a narrowing of
the net interest spread between the related amseétsorrowings and may even result in losses. Egrtturing this portion of the interest rate
and credit cycles, defaults could increase andtressaredit losses to us, which could adversefeetfour liquidity and operating results. Such
delinquencies or defaults could also have an adwfect on the spread between interest-earnirggsaasd interest-bearing liabilities.
Hedging techniques are partly based on assumels levprepayments of our fixed-rate and hybrid atjblerate mortgage loans and RME

If prepayments are slower or faster than assurhedifée of the mortgage loans and RMBS will be lengr shorter, which would reduce the
effectiveness of any hedging strategies we mayandemay cause losses on such transactions.
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I nterest Rate Effects on Fair Value

Another component of interest rate risk is thea@ftdhanges in interest rates will have on thevalue of the assets we acquire. We face the
risk that the fair value of our assets will increas decrease at different rates than that ofiabilities, including our hedging instruments. !
primarily assess our interest rate risk by estingathe duration of our assets and the duratioruofiabilities. Duration essentially measures
the market price volatility of financial instrumerds interest rates change. We generally calcdlatgion using various financial models and
empirical data. Different models and methodologis produce different duration numbers for the saeaarities.

It is important to note that the impact of changimigrest rates on fair value can change signiflgamhen interest rates change beyond 100
basis points from current levels. Therefore, thiatiity in the fair value of our assets could iease significantly when interest rates change
beyond 100 basis points. In addition, other factonsact the fair value of our interest raensitive investments and hedging instruments,
as the shape of the yield curve, market expecttarto future interest rate changes and otherahaokditions. Accordingly, in the event of
changes in actual interest rates, the change ifathealue of our assets would likely differ fraimat shown below and such difference might
be material and adverse to our stockholders.

I nterest Rate Cap Risk

We also invest in adjustable-rate mortgage loadsRMBS. These are mortgages or RMBS in which thdedging mortgages are typically
subject to periodic and lifetime interest rate capd floors, which limit the amount by which thewety’s interest yield may change during
any given period. However, our borrowing costs parg to our financing agreements will not be suttiesimilar restrictions. Therefore, in a
period of increasing interest rates, interest catds on our borrowings could increase withouttition by caps, while the interest-rate yields
on our adjustable-rate mortgage loans and RMBS aveiiiectively be limited. This problem will be mafied to the extent we acquire
adjustable-rate RMBS that are not based on mortgapéch are fully indexed. In addition, the mortgagr the underlying mortgages in an
RMBS may be subject to periodic payment caps #silt in some portion of the interest being defitared added to the principal
outstanding. This could result in our receipt alsleash income on our adjustable-rate mortgage®8/&S than we need in order to pay the
interest cost on our related borrowings. Thesefaatould lower our net interest income or causetdoss during periods of rising interest
rates, which would harm our financial conditionsledlows and results of operations.

I nterest Rate Mismatch Risk

We fund a substantial portion of our acquisitioh®MBS with borrowings that, after the effect ofdgéng, have interest rates based on
indices and re-pricing terms similar to, but of gahat shorter maturities than, the interest radeeas and re-pricing terms of the mortgages
and RMBS. In most cases the interest rate indiodsre-pricing terms of our mortgage assets andumaling sources will not be identical,
thereby creating an interest rate mismatch betwaseats and liabilities. Our cost of funds woulelkrise or fall more quickly than would ¢
earnings rate on assets. During periods of charigiegest rates, such interest rate mismatcheslemdatively impact our financial conditic
cash flows and results of operations. To mitigaterest rate mismatches, we may utilize the hedgfirmgegies discussed above. Our analysis
of risks is based on FIDAC's experience, estimategjels and assumptions. These analyses rely orlswatiich utilize estimates of fair
value and interest rate sensitivity. Actual ecormoainditions or implementation of investment dexisi by our management may produce
results that differ significantly from the estimai@nd assumptions used in our models and the pedjeesults shown in this 2013 Form 10-Q.

Our profitability and the value of our portfolion@luding interest rate swaps) may be adverselyetteduring any period as a result of
changing interest rates. The following table gifi@stthe potential changes in net interest incame portfolio value for our Agency RMBS
portfolio should interest rates go up or down 2%,d&nd 75 basis points, assuming parallel movenerke yield curves. All changes in
income and value are measured as percentage cHamgethe projected net interest income and padfealue at the base interest rate
scenario. The base interest rate scenario assoteesst rates at March 31, 2013 and various estsn@agarding prepayment and all activi
are made at each level of rate change. Actualtsesould differ significantly from these estimates
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March 31, 201

Projected Percentage
Change in Portfolio
Value , with Effect of
Projected Percentage Interest Rate Swaps &

Change in Net Other Hedging
Change in Interest Ra Interest Income (1 Transactions (2
-75 Basis Point (6.77%) 1.09%
-50 Basis Point (4.63%) 0.54%
-25 Basis Point (2.41%) 0.14%
Base Interest Ra - -
+25 Basis Point 2.90% (0.15%)
+50 Basis Point 6.47% (0.34%)
+75 Basis Point 10.14% (0.62%)

(1) Change in annual economic net interest incdnodudes interest expense on
interest rate swap

(2) Projected Percentage Change in Portfolio Vaumsed on instantaneous moves
in interest rates

Prepayment Risk

As we receive prepayments of principal on thesesitments, premiums and discounts on such investmgihbe amortized or accreted into
interest income. In general, an increase in pregaymates will accelerate the amortization of pasghpremiums, thereby reducing the
interest income earned on the investments. Conlyediscounts on such investments are acceleratédecreted into interest income
increasing interest income.

Extension Risk

Our Manager computes the projected weighted-avdifegef our investments based on assumptions déggithe rate at which the borrowers
will prepay the underlying mortgages. In generdlew fixed-rate or hybrid adjustable-rate mortgagmé or RMBS are acquired via
borrowings, we may, but are not required to, eimter an interest rate swap agreement or other hgdgstrument that effectively fixes our
borrowing costs for a period close to the anti@dadverage life of the fixed-rate portion of thiated assets. This strategy is designed to
protect us from rising interest rates as the boimgwosts are effectively fixed for the duratiortloé fixed-rate portion of the related assets.
However, if prepayment rates decrease in a rigiteyést rate environment, the life of the fixecerportion of the related assets could extend
beyond the term of the swap agreement or otherihgdgstrument. This could have a negative impacbor results from operations, as
borrowing costs would no longer be fixed after ¢émel of the hedging instrument while the income e@mwn the fixed and hybrid adjustable-
rate assets would remain fixed. In extreme sitnatiove may be forced to sell assets to maintaiguate liquidity, which could cause us to
incur losses.

Basis Risk

We seek to limit our interest rate risk by hedgirogtions of our portfolio through interest rate psand other types of hedging instruments.
Interest rate swaps are generally tied to undeglfireasury benchmark and LIBOR interest rates. Bk relates to the risk of the yield
spread between our RMBS and underlying hedges wigeSuch a widening may cause a decline in tirevidue of our RMBS that is grea
than the increase in fair value of our hedges tieguin a net decline in book value. The widenifignmrtgage-backed securities yields versus
Treasury benchmark and LIBOR interest rates maylréf®m a variety of factors such as anticipatedctual monetary policy actions or
other market factors.

Market Risk

Market Value Risk

Our available-for-sale securities are reflectethair estimated fair value with unrealized gaind lsses excluded from earnings and reported
due to changes in interest rates, prepayment spexdket liquidity, credit quality, and other facdo Generally, in a rising interest rate
environment, the estimated fair value of these sesiwould be expected to decrease; converselg,decreasing interest rate environment,

the estimated fair value of these securities wbel@éxpected to increase. As market volatility @éases or liquidity decreases, the fair valu
our investments may be adversely impacted.
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Real Estate Market Risk

We own assets secured by real property and mayreaproperty directly in the future. Residenfiadperty values are subject to volatility
and may be affected adversely by a number of fachocluding, but not limited to, national, regibaad local economic conditions (which
may be adversely affected by industry slowdownsathdr factors); local real estate conditions (salan oversupply of housing); change
continued weakness in specific industry segmemtsstcuction quality, age and design; demograpldtofa; and retroactive changes to
building or similar codes. In addition, decreaseprioperty values reduce the value of the collhtard the potential proceeds available to a
borrower to repay our loans, which could also caisst incur losses.

Risk Management

To the extent consistent with maintaining our REtatus, we seek to manage risk exposure to protegiortfolio of residential mortgage
loans, RMBS, and other assets and related debtstghe effects of major interest rate changesg@érerally seek to manage risk by:

e  monitoring and adjusting, if necessary, the resg¢x and interest rate related to our RMBS andinancings;

e attempting to structure our financing agreementhawe a range of different maturities, terms, aipatibns and interest r¢
adjustment period:

e using derivatives, financial futures, swaps, omionaps, floors and forward sales to adjust therést rate sensitivity of o
investments and our borrowing

e using securitization financing to lower averagstof funds relative to shotérm financing vehicles further allowing us to rieeethe
benefit of attractive terms for an extended pegbtime in contrast to short term financing and unity dates of the investments
included in the securitization; al

e actively managing, on an aggregate basis, thedsiteate indices, interest rate adjustment periadd, gross reset margins of
investments and the interest rate indices and @ periods of our financing

Our efforts to manage our assets and liabilitiescancerned with the timing and magnitude of thprieing of assets and liabilities. We
attempt to control risks associated with interagt movements. Methods for evaluating interestriskeinclude an analysis of our interest |
sensitivity “gap”, which is the difference betwdaterest-earning assets and interest-bearing li@silmaturing or re-pricing within a given
time period. A gap is considered positive whenatmount of interest-rate sensitive assets exceedsiount of interest-rate sensitive
liabilities. A gap is considered negative whenadhmount of interest-rate sensitive liabilities exdemterest-rate sensitive assets. During a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gapld/tend to adversely affect net interest incomeijenvd positive gap would tend to result in an
increase in net interest income. During a periothlhihg interest rates, a negative gap would tencesult in an increase in net interest
income, while a positive gap would tend to affeet imterest income adversely. Because differerasyqf assets and liabilities with the same
or similar maturities may react differently to claas in overall market rates or conditions, chamgésterest rates may affect net interest
income positively or negatively even if an instibmt were perfectly matched in each maturity catggor
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The following table sets forth the estimated m&yuoi re-pricing of our interest-earning assets imerest-bearing liabilities at March 31,
2013. The amounts of assets and liabilities shaitimn a particular period were determined in ademrce with the contractual terms of the
assets and liabilities, except adjustable-ratedpand securities are included in the period incvitheir interest rates are first scheduled to
adjust and not in the period in which they mature mcludes the effect of the interest rate swaps.interest rate sensitivity of our assets
liabilities in the table could vary substantiallgded on actual prepayments.

March 31, 201!
(dollars in thousand:

Within 3 1Yearto3 Greater than

Months 3-12 Months Years Years Total
Rate sensitive asse $ 141871 $ 1,21062 $ 1,14573¢ $ 7,631,96. $ 11,407,03
Cash equivalent 649,52t - - - 649,52¢
Total rate sensitive asse¢ 2,068,24i 1,210,62. 1,145,73i 7,631,96; 12,056,56
Rate sensitive liabilitie 290,21 331,56. 73,81¢ 1,613,97. 2,309,57.
Interest rate sensitivity ge $ 177802 $ 879,06: $ 107191 $ 601799 $ 9,746,99
Cumulative rate sensitivity gé $ 177802 $ 265708 $ 3,729,000 $ 9,746,99

Cumulative interest rate sensitivity gap &
percentage of total rate sensitive
asset: 1% 22% 31% 81%

Our analysis of risks is based on our manager’'smapce, estimates, models and assumptions. Thedesas rely on models which utilize
estimates of fair value and interest rate sengjtivictual economic conditions or implementatiorirofestment decisions by our manager t
produce results that differ significantly from thstimates and assumptions used in our models angtdfected results shown in the above
tables and in this Form 10-Q. These analyses itoogatain forward-looking statements and are sutifethe safe harbor statement set forth
under the heading, “Special Note Regarding Forwamking Statements.”

ITEM 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Controls

In our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year eh@=cember 31, 2012, we disclosed that managenaentlentified material weaknesses
in our internal controls over financial reportings of December 31, 2012, we determined that aources and level of technical accounting
expertise within the accounting function were ifisignt to properly evaluate and account for thenptexity of our investments in Non-
Agency RMBS securities, 10 strips, impairment ofwsitized loans held for investment, effective et calculations and related disclosures
in accordance with generally accepted accountinggiples. We did not design and maintain adegpedeedures or effective review and
approval controls, including the review of joureatries and reconciliations, over routine proces$#e did not design and maintain adequate
review and approval controls over significant esti@s and their related disclosure process to pt@vetetect a material misstatement and we
identified an overreliance on spreadsheets congisti manual inputs and complex calculations use@c¢ord transactions and estimates
supporting the financial statement amounts andatiaces.

Management is committed to the ongoing remediagitorts to address the material weaknesses asaweliher identified areas of risk. These
remediation efforts, summarized below, which ateegiimplemented or in process, are intended th bddress the identified material
weaknesses and to enhance our overall financiataemnvironment.

After the issuance of the interim financial statatsdor the third quarter of 2011, our managemesgttmore frequently with the Audit
Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors. Fuglit Committee, assisted by independent legal sebiand outside accounting experts
engaged by its counsel, has initiated an intemadstigation into the facts and circumstances feath the restatement of the Company’s
financial statements and will make recommendatfonappropriate remedial measures based on itéfiisd This investigation is ongoing €
the Audit Committee has not presented a final renendation to the Board of Directors.

The Company engaged a leading accounting firm ¥@sadnanagement with respect to accounting stasdesgarch support and engaged a
leading professional services organization speatmgjiin accounting and reporting matters to aid agement with key facets of the material
weaknesses in our internal controls over finan@porting. During 2012 and 2013, we added resoturcascounting policy, middle office a
financial reporting roles, including technical acnting subject matter resources and a new Chiefrigiial Officer. The additional resources
have remediated the material weakness describihe in011 Form 10-K regarding our resources and t#utechnical accounting expertise
within the accounting function to properly evaluatel account for the complexity of the Companyiestments in Non-Agency RMBS
securities, 10 strips, impairment of securitizedrle held for investment, and related disclosuregdaordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.
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Additionally, we have added resources and updateckegses regarding the direct independent revielwalidation of inputs used in
significant estimates such as the determinaticdhefair value, impairment, or interest income tedisto our investments in RMBS and
securitized loans held for investment, including thrmalization of a middle office function. We egd two independent pricing services to
test and validate the models we use to value ordfgtio.

Further, expanding the accounting policy, middigcefand financial reporting group has increasedapportunity to further segregate duties,
add additional review steps, improve the techricahpetency of the accounting function and improweamntrol environment. These
resources will provide improved documentation avidence of review of the schedules supporting theunts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.

Based upon the substantial work described abovéhenprocedures performed through the filing of thorm 10-Q, we have concluded that
the consolidated financial statements for the pisrovered by and included in this Form 10-Q aepared in accordance with GAAP and
fairly present in all material respects, our finahposition, results of operation and cash floasdach of the periods presented herein.

Our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial i0&r determined that the aforementioned materia@kmesses in our internal controls over
financial reporting were not fully remediated ahdttour disclosure controls and procedures wereffiettive as of March 31, 2013.

Other than the changes discussed above, therebeameno changes in our “internal control over fgiahreporting” (as defined in Rule 13a-
15 (f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended) that occurred during the period covieyetiis quarterly report that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to evally affect, our internal control over financigporting.

PART II. Other Information

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

After the issuance of the interim financial statatseor the third quarter of 2011, the Audit Comest of our Board of Directors initiated an
internal investigation, with the assistance of mgxounsel and financial advisors engaged by @eitsbunsel, regarding the facts and
circumstances relating to our accounting for Noredgy RMBS and the restatement of our financiakstaints. This investigation is
ongoing.

Our Board of Directors has received three derieatigemand letters alleging, among other things,ttreadirectors and our officers, as well as
our Manager, FIDAC, breached their fiduciary dutiesis by failing to institute adequate internahirols and failing to ensure that we made
accurate financial disclosures. These lettersastjamong other things, that the Board of Dirextake action to investigate and remedy the
alleged breaches of fiduciary duty. At the conidnof its investigation, the Audit Committee willake final recommendations to the Board
of Directors about an appropriate response todtiers. The Audit Committee currently expectsdndaude its investigation at the same time
as the Company files its Annual Report on Form 1fdikihe year ended December 31, 2013. These ted potential actions that may be
filed against us, whether with or without merit,yrdivert the attention of management from our bess harm our reputation and otherwise
may have a material adverse effect on our busifiessicial condition, results of operations andhctisws.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Under “Part | — Item 1A — Risk Factors” of our Forl10-K for the year ended December 31, 2012, wingétrisk factors related to (i)
risks associated with the restatement of our fingrstatements and related matters, (ii) risks ass®d with adverse developments in the
mortgage finance and credit markets, (iii) risks@sated with our management and relationship with Manager, (iv) risks related to our
business, (V) risks related to our investment3,régulatory and legal risks, (vii) risks relateal dur common stock, and (viii) tax risks. You
should carefully consider the risk factors settidrt our Form 10-K for the year ended December2,2. As of the date hereof, there have
been no material changes to the risk factors s#h o our Form 10-K for the year ended December Z112.
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Iltem 6. Exhibits

Exhibits:

Exhibit
Number
3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

4.1

31.1

31.2
32.1

32.2

The exhibits required by this item are set forthtlom Exhibit Index attached hereto

EXHIBIT INDEX
Description

Articles of Amendment and Restatement of Chintievestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 3.1tie Company’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmmated herein by
reference)

Articles of Amendment of Chimera InvestmentgiZmation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company's@®rt on Form 8-K filed on

May 28, 2009 and incorporated herein by refere

Articles of Amendment of Chimera Investmentiwation (filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’spRe on Form 8-K filed on
November 5, 2010 and incorporated herein by retae

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Chimera Investi@orporation (filed as Exhibit 3.2 to the ComyarRegistration Statement on
Amendment No. 2 to Form-11 (File No. 33-145525) filed on November 5, 2007 and incorporéeetin by reference

Specimen Common Stock Certificate of Chimakestment Corporation (filed as Exhibit 4.1 to @@mpany’s Registration
Statement on Amendment No. 1 to Form S-11 (File388-145525) filed on September 27, 2007 and irmated herein by
reference)

Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, parg to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Financial Oféir of the Registrant, pursuant to Section 30h@fSarban«Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Matthew Lambiase, Chief Extiee Officer and President of the Registrant, pard to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Rob Colligan, Chief Finano@fficer of the Registrant, pursuant to 18 U.SSgction 1350 as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Exhibit 101.INS Instance Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.SCH Taxonomy Extension Schema Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.CAL  Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.DEF  Additional Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbas@&ument Created**

XBRL

Exhibit 101.LAB  Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document **

XBRL

Exhibit 101.PRE  Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Documgnt *

XBRL

K%k

Submitted electronically herewith. tAthed as Exhibit 101 to this report are the follmrdocuments formatted in XBRL (Extensi

Business Reporting Language): (i) ConsolidatedeBtants of Financial Condition as of March 31, 2Qd8audited) and December 31, 2012
(derived from the audited consolidated financiatesnents); (i) Consolidated Statements of Openatamd Comprehensive Income for the
quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 2012; (iii) Chdated Statement of Stockholders' Equity (Defitit) the quarters ended March 31, 2013
and 2012; (iv) Consolidated Statements of Cash &fmwthe quarters ended March 31, 2013 and 2042(\g Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdréport to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION

By: [s/ Matthew Lambias
Matthew Lambias:
(Chief Executive Officer and Preside
and duly authorized officer of the registra

Date: February 21, 201

By: /s/Rob Colligan
Rob Colligan

(Chief Financial Officel
and principal financial officer of the registra
Date: February 21, 201
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Matthew Lambiase, certify the

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or om#ttde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletading with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant#éments, and other financial information includtethis report, fairly present
all material respects the financial condition, fessaf operations and cash flows of the registesnbf, and for, the periods presei
in this report;

The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢t)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaused such disclosure controls and procedutes designed under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahceporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenabsurance regarding the reliability of finandieporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetis report based
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in the regigtsainternal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyadmg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedséxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @rdgver financie
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’'s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 21, 20:

[s/ Matthew Lambias:

Matthew Lambias:

Chief Executive Officer and President (PrincipakEutive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Rob Colligan, certify that

1. | have reviewed this quarterly report on Forn-Q of Chimera Investment Corporatic

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or om#ttde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisletading with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the consolidated finant#éments, and other financial information includtethis report, fairly present
all material respects the financial condition, fessaf operations and cash flows of the registesnbf, and for, the periods presei
in this report;

The registran$’ other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢t)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f) for the registrant and hay

a.

Designed such disclosure controls and procedureaumed such disclosure controls and procedutes tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is ma
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finaheceporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenabsurance regarding the reliability of finandi@porting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetis report based
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in the regitsainternal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyadmg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @drdver financie
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

a.

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesse the design or operation of internal controlerdfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifigaet in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir

Date: February 21, 20:

[s/Rob Colligan

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial OffiQe



Exhibit 32.1

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended

March 31, 2013 to be filed with Securities and Eaawde Commission on or about the date hereof (tlepdR”), I, Matthew Lambiase,

President, and Chief Executive Officer of the Compaertify, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarlsa@zley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financiab@gmn and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934.

/s/ Matthew Lambias

Matthew Lambiase

Chief Executive Officer and Preside
February 21, 201




Exhibit 32.2

CHIMERA INVESTMENT CORPORATION
1211 AVENUE OF THE AMERICAS
SUITE 2902
NEW YORK, NEW YORK 10036

CERTIFICATION
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002, 10 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
In connection with the quarterly report on FormQ®&f Chimera Investment Corporation (the “Comparfgt)the period ended
March 31, 2013 to be filed with Securities and Eaawle Commission on or about the date hereof (tlepdR”), I, Rob Colligan, Chief
Financial Officer of the Company, certify, pursutmSection 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2A@V.S.C. Section 1350, that:
1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

2. The information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financiab@mn and results of operations of the
Company at the dates of, and for the periods coMeyethe Repor!

It is not intended that this statement be deemdx tiiled for purposes of the Securities Exchangeok 1934.

/s/Rob Colligan

Rob Colligan

Chief Financial Office
February 21, 201



